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The Canada Methodist Church is a rough-cast building, 
seating 250. Service at 6.30 p.m. ; Sunday school at 120 
pan.; prayer meeting on Thursday There are 30 mein-
bers. Sev. J. W. Freeman, pastor. 

The meeting-houe of the Society of Friends is a trame  
building, seating 75. Services at 11 a.m.; Sunday school 
at 10 a.m.; Bible class on Wednesday. There are 25 or 30 
members, but no regular minister at present. 

SHILOH is a post village, ita the north part, near the Gara-
fraxa  lino, distant 15 miles from Guelph, from Fergus, and 
6 from Douglas, a station on the Credit Valley Railway. 
It contains a saw and shingle mill, and 30 inhabitants. 

The saw mill of Nicholas Lvrett has been established 12 
years, and employs seven lianas in the manufacture ot lum-
ber and shingles. 

Shiloh Grange, No. 819, Patrons of Husbandry, was 
organized in March, 1881. James Grant, Master ; John 
Rea, Sec. Meets first Monday in each mouth. There are 
40 members. 

The post office was established 10 years ago, with James 
Mitchell as postmaster. Semi-weekly mail. 

SPEEDSIDE i8 a post village in the north-west part, near 
the line of Nichol, ten miles from Guelph, and six from 
Fergus. It contains a Congregational church, blacksmith 
sho_p, and 30 inhabitants. 

The Congregational Church is a handsome stone building, 
nearly octagonal in shape, and presents a very neat appear-
ance. It WR8 erected in 1880 at a cost of $1,800, and seats 
350. Services at 11 a.m. and 7 p.m. Sunday school at 
9.45 a.m. Prayer meeting on We lnesday. There are 70 
members. 

The post office was established about 1860, with James 
Loghrin as postmaster. 

1.1Toila is R post office in the south-west part, on the 
Guelph township line, about four miles from Guelph. 

Settlement commenced in this township about 1821. 
At that time land was of so little value and Eramosa so 
distant from markets, that free grants were made to all who 
could prove their capability of cultivating the same. It 

was only required that the  tees of the land office should be 
paid to obtain a grant of 200 acres. A flamber of the first 
settlers were from Pennsylvania to which State they had 
previously emigrated from England and Scotland. On 
their first settletnent there was neither mill, post office nor 
store within 25 miles. The town and township of Guelph 
settling soon after their a:rival, contributed materially to 
the prosperity of Eratnosa by furnishing a ready  market,  at 
good prices, for all the surplus produce, which the inhabit-
ants well knew how to turn to the best account. In 1825 
the township contained 284 inhabitants ; in 1841 the num-
ber increased t,o  935; and in 1850 to 2,050. At the present 
time the population is 3,221. * 

ERIN is the most easterly township.of the county, being 
bounded on the north-east by Peel county ; south-east by 
Halton county ; south-west by the townships of Guelph and 
Nichol ; and north-west by Garafraxa. The surface is gen-
erally rolling, and the soil mostly clay and sandy loam, 
about one-sixth being black loam, and one-sixth gravelly. 
About 10,000 acres is reported too stony for cultivation, 
and a similar quantity swampy. The land is nearly all 
cleared, there being very little timber, what there is con-
sisting of beech, maple, cedar, hemlock and tamarack. 
The area of the township is 70,400 acres. The chief farm 
products are fall and spring wheat, barley, oate, peas and 
hay. The Orangeville branch of the C. V. R. crosses the 
northern portion of the township, passing through Erin 
village. There are eight post offices in the townshtp, viz.: 
Ballinafad, Binkham, Brisbane, Coningsby, Erin, Hillsburg, 
Mimosa and Ospringe. 

BALLINAFAD is a post village in the south part, on the 
Halton county line, six miles from Georgetown, the same 
from Acton, stations on the G. T. R., seven miles from 
Erin, a station on the C. V. It., 21 miles from Guelph, and 
36 from Toronto. Daily stages connect it with Erin village 
and Georgetown, and daily mails are received. The village 

• The above facts of the early  seulement of Eramans are gleaned from a sketch of  Mimosa published by Mr John Smith, of Guelph,  some  years ago. 
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contains two churches (Presb. and M. E.), two stores, a
wagon shop, two blacksmith shops, a pump factory, botel,
and 75 inhabitants.

The Presbyterian Church is of brick, and was erected in
1879. Services at 11 a.m. Sunday school at 9.30 a.m.
Prayer meeting on Tuesday. Bible class Sunday evening.
Rev. A. B. Dobson, pastor.

The M. E. Church is of brick. Services at 2.30 p.m.
Sund ay school at 1 p.m. Prayer meeting on Wednesday.
Rev. Massrs. Clark and Leek, of Georgetown, officiate.

Butsasn is a post-office in the north-east part, near the
Peel county line, four miles from Erin village.

Batsssxs is a post-office on the Eramosa and Erin gravel
road, two miles west of Erin.

Coxwassz is a poet-office, about the centre of the town-
ship, 16 miles from Guelph.

Esnt is an incorporated village, near the Peel connty
line, at the terminus of Eramosa and Erin gravel road. It
is a station on the Orangeville and Elora branch of the
Credit Valley Railway, and is very pleasantly situated. It
is distant from Guelph 20 miles, and 13 from Orangeville.
The west branch of the Credit passes through the village,
and affords a good water privilege. It is surrounded by a
fine farming country and its railroad facilities make it an
excellent grain mariet. A daily stage connects it with
Guelph. It contains three hotels, five churches, two har-
ness shops,.two furniture shops, two undertaking shops, a
floaring mill, woolen mill, planing mill, printing office
(from which is issued a weekly paper), a butcher shop, two
carriage shops; a cooper shop, saw mill, bakery, four gen-
eral stores, a jewellery store, a millinery and fancy goods
store, a barber shop, two oceries, a stove store, drug store,
hardware store two blac smith sho^s a foundry, boot and
shoe store, banking house, and 700 in^abitants.

Erin Mills (flouring) have been established five years,
contain four runs of stones, and have a capacity of 100
barrels a day. D. & J. Clark.

The Erin Woolen Mill has been established 20 years, and

employs eight or ten hands in the maiuti ►cture of tweeds,
flanne stocking yarns, &c. R. J. Duxbury.

The^rin Planing Mills have been established six years,
and employ three or four hands in a general bnilding busi-
ness. John McMillan & Co.

The Erin Foundry has been established 40 years, and
employs six to eight Ilands in the manufacture of plows,
harrows, cultivators, and other agricultural implements.
C. H. Walker.

No. 7 Company, 30th battalion, Wellington Rifles. Wm.
McDowell, captain ; Win. Conboy, lieutenant.

Erin Lodge, No. 67, A. O. U. W., was organized in May,
1880. Henry Dunbar, M. W.; S. Dilta, I{eoorder. Meets
the first and third Mondays in each roonth. There are
over 80 members.

Erin L. O. L., No. 112; John Collier, W. M. - O. H.
Walker, Secretary. Meets Wednesday, on or bettore fnll
moon. There are 40 members.

Wellington Lodge, No. 271, A. F. and A. M., was or-
ganized 12 or 14 years ago. James Hamilton, W. M.;
Wm. Conboy, Secretary. Meete Wednesday, on or before
full moon. There are 80 members.'

Erin Branch, No. 20, Dominion Total Abstinence Club,
was organ ized in 1879. John H McDonald, President;
John Collier, Secretary. Meets each alternate Friday.
There are 600 members. The Club have erected a large
hall, seating 450, at a cost of about $900, including lot,
and are entirely out of debt.

The Canada Mothodist Church is a brick buildin , seat-
ing 300. It was erected ten years ago, at a cost of 1I,700.
Services at 10.80 a.m. and 6.80 p.m.; Sunday school at
2.30 p.m.; prayer meeting on Thursday. There are 50
members. Rev. Isaac Crane.

Burns Church ( Presbyterian) is a brick building, seating
450. It was erected in 1881, at a cost of $4,500. Services
at 11 a.nl. and 6.30 p.m.; Sunday school at 9.45 a.m. There
are 158 members. Rev. Robert Fowlie.

The Disciples Church is a brick building, seating 300.
It was erected in 1873, at a cost of $4,200. Services at 11
a.m.; Sunday school at 10 a.m. There are 75 members.
The pastorate is vacant.
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The L'uNtiot (:LurcL is a brick building, aeatiug 350. It
was erected in 1875, at a coat of $3,500. Services at 11
a.m. and 6 p.m.; Sunday school at 10 a.m.; prayer meet-
ing on Wednesday. There are 45 memberr. Rev. Hugh
Reid.

All Saints Church (Episcopal) is a brick building, seating
200. It was erected 12 or 14 years ago. Services at 10.30
a.m.; Sunday school at 2 p.m. There are 40 families.

Erin village was settled in 1830, by Daniel McMillan.
The "t-o$ico was established in 1832, Wm. Corllock being
the first postmaster.

HILLBBIIR(i is a post village, in the north yart, on the
Orangeville and Eldra branch of the Credit Valley Rail-
way, about 4 miles front Erin, 22 from Guelph, and 55
from Toronto. It is also on the headwaters of the Credit
River, which here affords a good water privilege. The
village contains five churches, three wagon ahops, four
blacksnlith shops, four general stores, three hotels, a tailor
shop, two shoe ahops, a stove store, tannery, grocery, flour-
ing mill, job printn^ office, butcher shop, dru g store, cabi-
net shop, undertaker s shop, bakery, hai nees shop, and 4;0
inhabitants.

The fl.ouring mill of Wm. How was established in 1867,
and has four runs of stones, with a capacity of 50 barrels a
day.

The Hillaburg Tannery was established in 1862, and em-
ploys four or five bands in the manufacture of harness and
other leather. W. H. Gaud.

Hillsburg Lodge, No. 167, I. O. O. F., was organized
seven or eight yeare ago . Donald McMillan, N. G.; W. J.
McCormick, R. S. Meets each alternate Friday. There
are 35 members

Hillsburg LodRe, No. 66, A. O. U. W., was organized
May 1et, 1880. W. H. Gand, M. W.; G. A. Lacey, Re-
corder. Meets each alternate 1'uesday. There are 45
members.

St. Andrew's Church (Presbyterian) is of stcne, seating
300. It was erected in 1869. Services at 11 a.m.; Sun-.
day'school at 2.80 p.m. There are 70 membere. Rev.

Wrv C. Armstrong.

CiUELPH. x x I I i.

The Baptist Church is a rough-cast building, seating 300.
Services at 11 a.m. and 6 p.m. ; Sunday school at 14.45 a.m. ;
C rayer meeting on Wednesday. There are 81 members.

v. Alex. McFadyen.
The Canada Methodist Church is a frame building, seat-

ing 250. Services at ::.30 p.m. each alternate Sallbath.
There are 15 members. Rev. Isaac Crane, of Erin, pastor.

The Disciples hold services at 6.30 p.m. in Temperance
Hall.' James Lediard, pastor.

The village was laid out by Nazareth Hill, after whom
it was named, and surveyed by Francis Kerr in 1855. The
post office was established in 1851, Win. Gooderham, of
Gooderham & Worts, Toronto, being the first postmaster.
Wm. IIow opened the firat store. A grist mill was started
in 1852 by Mr. Worts, and a saw mill previous by Nazareth
Hill, who also kbpt the first hotel. The telegraph office
was opened in 1871, and the C.V.R. Station in January,1a79.

MlxooA is a post office in the north-west part, near the
line of Eramosa, 16 miles from Fergus and 32 from Guelph.

OsPSiNaa is a post village on the Guelph and Erin gravel
road, six miles from Acton on the G. T. R. and twelve
from Guelph. It contains two hotels, a store, blackemith
shop, wagon shop, Union church, and 60 inhabitants.
Daily mail.

The township commenced settling in 1820, and was all
settled within .15 years. In 1841 it contained 1,168 inhahit-
ants,which had increased to 3,035 in 1850. At the present
time it contains a population of 4,000.

GUELPH township is hounded on the north by the
townships of Nichol and Pilkington ; on the east by
Eramoea ; on the south by Puslinch ; and on the west by
Waterloo county. It contains an area of 37,083 acres,
30,000 acres of which are cleared. The surface iz generally
rolling and the soil about three-fourths clay and black loam,
and une-fourth sandy loam. The depth of soil is from
twelve to eighteen inches with a hardpan subsoil. It is
well watered by the River Speed and its tributaries, and
other small BtreamB. Fall and spring wheat, barley, oats,

,
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peas, turnips and hay, are the principal praducts of the 
soil, which yielde excellent crops. It aleo ranks as the 
premier township of the Province for stock raising, con-
taining fine herds of Gallowavs and Devons, Durham and 
Durham grades, Berkshire liege, Cotswold and Leicester 
sheep, &c. Limestone exists in abundance along the 
streams, which is extensively quarried. The main lino  of 

the G. T. R. traverses the southern portion from east t,o 

west, and the W. G. & B. R. R. passes through the central 

portion from south to north. The township contains five 

post offices, viz.: Armstrong's Mills, Gourock, Guelph, 

3&arden and Mosborough. 

Asimmorm's Mims is a post office in the north part, on 

the River Speed, near the line of Eramosa, seven miles from 

Guelph. Semi-weekly mail. 

GOUROCK is a post office on the Waterlace Road, four 
miles from Guelph, and is a flag station on the W. G. & 

B. R. R. Daily mail. 

THE CITY OF GUELPH, the county seat of Welling-

ton, is situated in one of the most fertile portions of the 
Dominion, about midway between the great lakes. It is 

built on a number of hills, giving it a picturesque appear-
ance, and is surrounded by a magnificent agricultural and 

stock raising country, being celebrated, far and near, for 

the superiority of its products. It is also an important sta-

tion on the lines of the Grand Trunk and Wellington, Grey 
and Bruce Railways, which, with their connecting lines, 
bring it within easy communication with all parts of the 

Province. The River Speed, a winding stream, with a fall 

of about 30 feet, passes through the city, affording an abun-

dant water power. The city is  distant  from Toronto 48 

miles, and from Hamilton 30 miles. Within the corporate 
limits are a number of extensive quarries. from which an 

excellent quality of limestone is produced for exportation, 

and which has been used to a large extent in the erection 

ot the public buildings and private residences of the city. 

The business streets are lined with many  fine blocks and 
stores, devoted to the varied departments of trade and com-

merce, while numerous elegant mansions adorn the subur- 

ban portions. 

The city is supplied with pure spring water, obtained from living springs near the York road, and forced through 
the mains by the Holly system. 

The public buildings of Guelph are all substantial stone 
buildings, prominent among which may be mentioned the Court House and Jail, City Hall and Market House, High 
and Central Schools, Post-Office and Custom House, Lo-
retto Convent, St. Joseph's Hospital, General Hospital, &c. 

Loretto Convent, founded in 1854, is beautifully situated 
on an eminence which commands a charming view of the 
City, the river, and the surrounding country. The edifice, with the Church of Our Lady, are the first objects that at-
tract the eve within several miles of the city. The Convent 
is under  the  superintendence of the Ladiets of Loretto, who 
sustain a boarding and select day school of from 80 to 100 pupils, a select boys' school ttf some 30 pupils, and are alao 
engaged in teaching the separate schools. 

St. Joseph's Hospital and House of Providence, under 
the superintendence of the Sisters of St. Joseph, is located 
on Hospital street, north of the Loudon road, and ie a fine 

 three-story stone building, fitted up with all necessary ap-
pointments for the care of the sick. In connection with 
the Hospital is a farm of 65 acres, from which is _procured 
the vegetables and fruit used in the institution. The Hos-pital ws.s chartered in 1862, and additions made fi-cm  thne to time, as neceesity required. The flouse of Providence, 
in connection, is designed for aged people, and those re-
quiring a temporary home. 

The General Hospital is located on Delhi street, on the 
Eramosa Hill, and is a substantial brick building, three 
storeys in height, with mansard roof, and fitted up with 
every necessary for the care of the sick. It was erected 
some eight years ago, at a cost of about $10,000. Four 
acres of ground are attached, from which all the vegetablee 
required are produced, and two cows  are  kept. The insti-
tution is supplied with 50 beds. It is governed by a Board 
of twelve directors, who are elected annually ,by the con-
tributing members, the Mayor of the city, one member of the Council, and the Warden of the County, being mem-
bers of the Board. An annual contribution of  $4.0nentitles 
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the contributor to a voice in the election of directors. The
Medical Board consists of all the pbyeicians in the city.

There are twelve churches in the city, r(presenting the
usual phases of religious belief: The buildings are mostly
substantial etone structures, a number of the -ii being models
of eh•ganre. ornameuts to the city, and fi ►► ished after the
most approved styles of church architecture. There are be-
eides, societies of Chrir:tadelphians and Plymouth Brethren.

In her school facilities, Guelph has every reason to cun-
t tulate herself on the excellent advantageti provided,

rotlgh the wisdom and liberality of her citizens, ti)r the
thorough education of her youth. The school buildings,
which are among the finest of the city, comprise a high
school, central school, and four primary schools, all sub-
stantial stone buildings, fitted up with all modern improve-
ments, thoroughly officered with an efficient corps of
teachers, and liberally patronized. There is also a Roman
Catholic separate school, the Loretto Convent, and several
select schools.

The Mechanics' Institute, located in the May's Block,
Upper Wyndham street, should also be noticed in this con-
nection. The Institute was incorporated in July, 1853,
and has a library of between 3,000 and 4,000 volumes.
In connection with the library is a commodious and cotn-
fortable reading room, supplied with the IAading periodi-
cals ; also recreation roome. A winter course of lectures
is sustained, and eveninq classes, which are well attended.

The Yonng Mens Christian Association, on Upper
Wyndham street, also st:stain free readin and recreation
rooms, and a small library for the use of t^e members.

Two first-class hotels, the Royal and Wellington, with
others of more humble pretensions, supply all the comforts
of a home to the travelling public.

The city supports two ably-managed daily papers, the
Herald and the Mercury, both of which are Iiberally pat-
ronized.

The Institution known as the "Ontario School of Agri-
culture and Experimental Farm," is situated about a mile
to the south of the city. The farm consists of 550 acres,
about 400 of which are cleared. It is composed of almost
every variety of soil, and hence it is well eutted for the pnr-
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poses fôr which it was selected. Work commenced in May,
1874. Since that time considerable progress has been made.
Many improvements have beetl made on the Farm. A
considerable portion of it has been well drained. suitable
implements have been provided, and a very fair representa-
tion of stock secured. The Hor;ienltnral Department has
been thoroughly established, and is now one of the most
efficient means of education in connection with the Insti-
tution. The Institution is well officered by an efficient
corps of instructors, the Farm bein, divided into five dis-
tinet departments, viz : Live Stock, Field, Horticnltural,
Mechanical, and Experimental. The instrnction received
in the clrtss-room is, as far as possible,'illustrated and ex-
emplified in the fields, yards and shops. A diploma is
given to each student who completes his course of study,
and passes satisfactorily all examinations, both on the sub
jects contained in the curriculum, and on the work of his
apprenticeship. *The buildings have been erected o ►► an
elevated portion of the Farm, on the north s;de of the Dun-
das road, commanding an extensive view of the surrounding
country, and the City of Guelph. The principal entrance
is from the Dundas road, at the south-west angle of the
grounds in front of the buildings, which have been skilfully
planted ; the hot-houses and horticultural qardens being
in the south-east part oi the premises, and having a sep-
arate entrance on the Dundas road. The buildings now
completed occnpy a space of 240 feet in front by 180 feet
in depth, and contain a reception routn and office, f'our large
class and lecture-roums, with dining and reading-rooms,
library, dormitories for 1'60 pupils, bath-rooms and lava-
tories, and apartments for the President, Professor of
Agriculture, Assistant Master, and Bursar, also Matrou'r
and Servants' rooms. There are also commodious farm
buildings, ofstone and wood, with enclosed yards. The total
cost uf land, bnildings, furnisl ► inge,&c,, amount to about
*200,00(t. The Institution is liberally patronized, and a
credit to the Province.

City Council, 1883. -Mayor-Caleb Chase. St. Patrick's
Ward-Aldernien Coffee, Lain and O'Connor. St.
George's Ward-Aldertnen Davilson, F. B. Skinner and
Stevenson. St. John's Ward-cl,ldorlnen $earu, Read

n
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and Walker. St. David's Ward-Aldermen Goldie,
Hewer and G. H. Skinner. St. Andrew's Ward-Alder-
men Gowdy, Maddock and Russell. St. Janies' Ward-
Aldermen Burns, Keough and Lam prey.

Municipal, Officere-Mayor-Caleb Chase. Clerk and
Treasarer-John Harvey. Police Magistrate-Thos. W.
Saunders. Chief Engineer of Fire Department-James
Armstrong. Chief of Police- Frederick Randall. Market
Clerk ' Walter King. Solicitor-Donald Guthrie, Q. C.
Janitor-Win. Edwards.

Police Departmpnt-Chief ot'Police-Frederick W. Ran-
dall. Sergeant.-John Dooley. Constables -Wm. Ham-
mond and Geo. Evei-son.

Board of WaPr Commissionere.-Geo. Howard, Chair-
man ; Richard Mitchell, Caleb Chase, Mayor ; Edmund
Harvey, Secretary. Office, City Hall Buildings.

Fire DepartmerLt-The city employs a paid Fire De-
l,artment, under the management of the Fire and Water
Committee of the City Council, and consisting of a chief'
engineer and assistant, secretary, a hose company and
hook and ladder company. There are three hose-reels
and carts, a hook and ladder waggon, and a Silsby steam
fire engine for use in the outskirts. There are six fire
alarm stations located at convenient points through the
city, and connected by telephone.

Chief Engineer-James Armstrong ; Adam Robertson,
,2nd Engineer. Secretary-Geo. W. Lamond. Hose Co-
Win. J. Armstrong, Foreman. Nine men. Hook and
Ladder Co.-A Gillies, Captain ; W. F. Allen, Foreman.
Ten men.

Guelph Board of Trade.-John Hogg, President ; J. M.
Bond, Vice-President; David McCrae, Secretary. Coun-
cil.-James Goldie, Charles Davidson, Robert Melvin, J.
B. Armstrong, A. B. Petrie, Joseph Heffernan, William
Wilkie, William Bell, John McKenzie, John 11ScCrea,
George Howard, J. T. Brill.

Ontario Agricultural College and Experimental Farm is
located on the Dundas road. James Mille, M.A., Presi-
dent; William Brown, Farm Superintendent; R. B. Hare,
Ph.D., Professor of Chemistry; J. P. MeMurrich, M.A.,
Professor of Biology and $orticulture; F. C. Grenside,

QVELPB. atm

Q.S., Professor of Veterinary Science; E. L. Hunt, under-
graduate Toronto IIuiversity, Assistant Resident and Ma-
thematical Muter; A. T. Deacon, Bu-rsar.

The General Hospital is located on Delhi street. George
Elliott, Chairman Board of Directors; Edmund Newton,
Secretary, John McCrea, Chairman Managing Committee;
George Murton, Chairman Visiting Commlttee.

St. Joseph's Hospital and House of Providence is located
on Hospital street, and is under the man agement of the Sisters
of St. Joseph. Sister Frances Joseph, Superioresa. James
Maya, Chairman Committee of Management; John McEI-
derry, Secretary.

The City &ind was organized October 16th, 1878. Goo.
Lawrence, Bandmaster. There are 20 members.

McLaren's String Band has been organizgd three years.
There are five members. Donald McLaren, Leader.

The itaymond Sewing Machine Works, on Yarmouth
street, have been establisllad twenty-one years. About 200
hands are employed, turning out from 500 to 601) machines
weekly, and the business is steadily increasing. Charles
Raymond, proprietor.

Royal City Mills, on McDonnell street, are the oldest es-
tablished flouring. mills in the city. There are eight runs
of stones, with a capacity of 150 barrels a day. David
Spence, proprietor.

The Guelph Carriage Goods Company, on McDonnell
street, has been established eleven years, and employs about
100 hands.

The Woolen and Worsted Manufactory of MeCrae & Co.
was established in 1861, and employs 325 hands in the
manufacture of fine full-fashioned under-clothing, hosiery,
worsted yarns and fingerings of all descri?tions.

The Piano Factory of Rainer, Sweetnam & Haze!ton has
been established ten years, and employs 40 hands in the
manufacture of square and upriKht pianos, tnrning out
fror: three to four pianos a week.

McConnell's Carriage Works, at the Eramosa bridge,
have been estah?ished ^ seven years, and employ from 12 to
15 hands in the manufacture of fine carriage at.d sleigh
work.

Grant'e Pump Works, on Perth street, have been estab-
6 I
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lished six or seven years, and employ five hands in the 
manufacture of wood and iron pumps. 

The Bell Organ Factory has been established seventeen 
years, and etnploys 200 hands, turning out twenty organs 
daily. This enterprising firtn  lias  recently erected one of 
the handsomest buildings in the city, nearly opposite the 
Grand Trunk Railway passenger station, and is the first 
object to attract the attention of the observer on approach-
ing the station. The building is of impo-ling dimensions, 
built of white brick, with stone foundations, tour stories in 
height, surmounted by a fine tower, in which has been 
placed a clock with four dials. The clock is to be illumi-
nated at night, BO that the time may be noted night or day. 

The People's Mill (Roller Mill), on Cardigan street, has 
been established sixteen years. There are four runs of 
stones, besides rollers, with a capacity of e00 barrels a day. 
James Goldie, proprietor. 

The Gowdy Agricultural Works, on Suffolk street, corner 
of Yorkshire, have been established twenty years, and em-
ploy from 50 to 60 hands in the manufacture of tempers, 
mowers, fanning mills, plows, lawn mowers, seed drills, and 
other agricultural implements. Thomps Gowdy & Co. 

Speedvale Mill (flouring) has been established twenty-
one years. There are four rnns of stones, with a capacity 
of 130 barrels a day. John Pipe. 

The Organ Manufactory of James, Powell & Co., corner 
of Gordon and Essex streets. was established in July, 1881, 
and employs 15 hands. 

The Guelph Carpet Factory, on Neeve street, corner of 
Cross, has been established ten years, and employs 40 to 50 

hands in the manufacture of' ingrain and damask carpets, 
tnrning ont 2,000 yards a week. J. & A. Armstrong & 
Co., proprietors. 

The Confeetionerv Establishinent of J. Stove', Day's 
block, Market square, and 55 St. George's Square, has been 
established five or six years, and employs from 12 to 15 
hands in the manufacture of all kinds of confectionery. 

The Guelph Foundry, on Eramosa road,  bas  been estab -
lished 30 years, and employs 12 hands in the manufacture 
of engines, boilers and general mill work. Robertson & 
Son. 

The Manufactory of W. B. Cowan, M.D., at the Eramosa 
Bridge, employs live hands in the manufacture of the 
parlor  gaine, "The Fort." 

The Silver Creek Brewery, on Waterloo Ave., was estab-
lished in 1851, and employs 25  banda in the manufacture 
of ale, porter and lager. The building is one of the finest 
erected for brewing purposes in the Province, having facil-
itieb for turning out 40,000 barrels annually. The malt 
house in connection has a capacity of 40,000 bushels. 
Steam power is employed, the engine being of 82 horse-
power capacity. The water, which is of the purest quality, 
comes from one of the finest natural springs to be found in 
the Province, and flows to all parts of the building. Geo. 
Sleeman, proprietor. 

The Machine Shop of Thos. Worswick & Co., corner of 
Dublin and Norwich streets,  ha  s been established twelve 
years, and etnploys 40 hands in the manufacture of engines, 
boilers, machinists' tools, &c. 

Crowe's iron Works, on NortClk street, corner of Cam-
bridge, have been established fifteen years, and emplo,y 30 
hands in the manufacture of all kinds of castings. John 
Crowe, proprietor. 

The Mineral Water Works of tlex. Mathews, on Dun-
das road, have been established ten years, and employ '2 
or three hands in the manufacture of ginger ale, birch 
beer, &c. 

The Planing Mill of Robert Stewart, on tipper Wyndham 
street, has been established twenty-five years, and employs 
from 25 to 30 hands. 

The Furniture Manufactory of Burr Bros., corner of 
Oxford and Yof kshire streets,  has  been est tblished eleven 
years. and employs 80 to 100 halide. 

The Fertilizing Co., of Canada, on York road, near the 
east lino, was organized about five years ago, and employs 
f om 30 to 40 hands in the manufacture of superphosphate 
of lime, crushed  muid   pulverized bone-dust, and disinfect-
ants. Arthur Shaw, manager. 

The Wellington Marble Works, on Quebec street west, 
were established in 1874, and employ from 12 to 15 hands. 
MeQuillan & Hamilton. 

Tho Carriage Manufactory of Caleb Chas.., at 143 Wool- 
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wich street, has been established thirben years, and employs 
14 hands. 

The Guelph Shirt Factory, on McDonnell street, has 
b4..en established four years, and employs 15 to 20 hands. 
Michael Quinn. 

The Guelph Brewery, corner of Fleet and Essex streets, 
lias  been established forty years, and employs from 8 to 10 
hands in the manufacture of malt, ale, porter, &c. Thomas 
Holliday. 

The New Mills (flouring and gristing) on Waterloo ave., 
have been established eleven years. There are three runs 
of atones, with a capacity oi 50 barrels a day. Benj. 
Freure. 

The Cigar Manufactory of J. W. Flolliiig, was established 
in 1880,  and  employs 4 hands. 

The Guelph Pump Factory, :.t 53 Arthur street, was 
eatablished in 1848, and employs 2 hands in the manu-
facture of wood pumps. Edward Stovel. 

The Cooperage of George Webber, has been established 
thit teen years, and employs 20 hands in tlte manufacture 
of all kinds of barrels. 

The Carriage Manufactory of S. & G. Penfold, on Mc-
Donnell street, was established in the spring of 1881, and 
employs 11 hands. 

The Guelph Malleable Iron Works, Paisley road, corner 
of Begot street, ht.ve  been established four years, and em-
ploy 15 to 20 hands. A. Murchey & Co. 

The Guelph Axle Works, on Wellington street, have been 
eatablished ten years, and employ from 20 to 25 hands in 
the manufacture of carriage and wagon axles. T. Pepper 
& Co. 

The Malt House of Murton & Co., junction of Grand 
Trunk and Great Western R.ailways has been established 
ten or twelve years, employe 6 to 8 hands, and haa a ca-
pacity of 25,000 bushels. 

Parker's Carriage Works, 51 Woolwich street, have been 
established twenty-one years, and employ 8 to 10 hands. 
Robert Parker. 

The Malt House of Alex. Mackenzie, on Surrey street, 
has been established eleven years, emplop 8 or 4 hands, 
and hae a capacity of 10,000 bushels. 

The Foundry of W. H. Mills, at 156 Woolwich street, 
has been estabfished thirty yeare, and employs 21 hands in 
the manufacture of stoves and castings of all descriptions. 

The Custom Woolen Mill of Geo. Murray, on Wellington 
street, near Gow's bridge, has been established fifteen years ; 
5 or 6 hands are employed in the manufacture of winceys 
and carpet yarns. 

The Soda Water Works of W. H. Kellett, at 93 London 
road, have been established six years. 

The Cigar Manufactory of Solomon Myers, at 9 Gordon 
street, was established in 1867, and employs 20 hands. 

The Ashery of James Ryan, on Liverpool street, corner 
of Yorkshire, has been established twenty-one years, and 
employs from 8 to 10 hands, turning out 200 barrels ot 
potash annually. 

The Guelph Gas Company was incorporated ir 1870. 
Donald Guthrie, Q.C., President; F. J. Chadwick, Vice-
President; John Yule, Manager, Secretary, and Treasurer. 
Office on Waterloo street, near Huskimon. 

The Guelph Tannery, on Huskisson street, was established 
about 1860. J. C. Foster. 

The Guelph Wright Patent Barrel Company was or-
ganized in January, 1882, and are engaged in the manu-
facture of bulge barrel machines. W. B. Cowan, M.D., 
Preaident ; Col. N. Higinbotham, Secretary. 

The Guelph Sewing Machine and Novelty Works, at 
Nelson Crescent, were established in 1869, and etnploy 
from 60 to 70 hands in the manufacture of Osborn "  A"  
sewing machines, lawn tnowers, apple parers, sad irons, egg 
beaters, yard measures, taps, iron and steel skates, &c. A 
foundry has lately been added, where all kinds of castings 
are manufactured. Russell & MeCrae. 

The Carriage Top Manufactory of Klcepfer & Walker 
was established in June, 1881, and employs 30 hands in the 
manufacture of carriage and buggy tops. 

The Stove Board Factory of G. F. Sterne, opposite the 
Market, employs 8 to 10 hands in the manufacture of crys-
talized stove boards, and Sterne's patent roller stove boards. 

The Manufactory of James Harris & Co., on Berlin St., 
lias  been established two years, and employe 7 hands in the 

1' 
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manufacture of' octave couplers, vox humanas, pitmen, or-
gan actions, keys, &c .

The Dominion Bell Foundry, on McDonnell street, em-
ploya 15 hands in the manufacture of factory, farm
and church bells .

The Oatmeal Mill of 11 . Murton, opposite the ltoyal
Hotel, was erected in 1881, and has five runs of stones for
the manufacture of oatmeal, cornmeal, split peaa and tarrn-
ers' chopp ing .

Tolton s Agricultural Works, corner of Huskisson and
Waterloo streets, have l :► een established seven years, and
employ from 1 ! to 15 hands in the manufacture of plows,
harrows and other agricultural implements and repalring ;
also woolen machinery, carpet rollers, &c .

The Union Foundry, at 38 Huskisson street, has been
established thirteen years, and employs 8 to 10 hands in
the manufacture of stoves, plows and other agricultural
imp lements. Grifiin & Grundy .

The Victoria Mills, on Wellington street, corner of
Huskisson, have been established forty years . There are 3
runs of stones, with a capacity of 60 to 70 barrels a day .
Presant Bros.

The Agricultural lmplement Manufactory of Chas. Thaiu,
on Cardi gan street, was established in 1862, and employs 5
or 6 hands in the manufacture ot' turnip drills, double u,old
plows, cultivators, plows and other agricultural i mplemente ;
also wagons, sleighs, and general jobbing .

Wellington Council, No. 15, R. and S . M ., was organ-
ized about three years ago. Thrice I1J . Master, John
Scoon ; R. Hunter, Recorder. Meets the third Tuesday
in each month. There are 20 members .

Guelph Chapter, No. 40, R . A . M., has been organized
14 years. S. R. Moffat, Z . ; G. Anderson, jr., Scribe .
Meets the second Friday in each month . There are 75
members.

Guelph Lodge, No. S5~, A . F . AND A. M ., was organiz-
ed in 1872. J . H. Finlay, W. M . ; FI an k Locke, bec.
Meets the second Tuesday in each month . There are fi5
members.

Speed Lodge, No 160, A. F. AND A. M ., wss organized
in 1864. H. K. Maitland, W . M. ; S. R. Moffat, Sec.

Meets the first Tuesday in each month, at Masonic Hall,
TJpper Wyndham street . There are over 100 members . ;

Wxverlv Lodge, No. 361, A . F . AND A . M. R. Qemmell,
W. M . ; T. S. Petrie, Sec. Meets the third Monday in
each month, at Masonic Hall, Upper * Wyndham street .
There are 60 members .

Wellington Encampment, No. 31, was organized Feb .
9th, 1876. J. Hendergon, C . P . ; W. Carter, Scribe . Meets
second and fourth Fridays, in Odd Follows Hall, Upper
Wyndam street . There are 65 members.

'9xcelsior De p Lod~;e , No. 14, I . O . O. F., was organ-
ized in 1881 . ~ ►n. Parkei, P.G., D.M . ; John Day, P.G.,
Sec. Meets the third Friday in each month .

Progress Lodge, No. 158, I. O. O. F., was organized
March 7th, 1875 . Theodore Fenwick, N .G . ; Chas . Cottis,
R. S. Meets every Thursday in Odd Fellows
Hall, Cutten's Block, corner Wyndham and McDon-
nell streets . There are 102 members .

ReliaLce Lodge, No 89. I .O.O.F. was organized March
15th, 1872. J . H. Hall, N . G. ; J. Colyon, R . S. Mecta
every Monday in Odd Fellows flail . There are 125 ► nem-
bers .

Prince Arthur Lodge, No . 1381, L. O. L., was organized
ten or twel ve years ago . A . Sweetman, W. M . ; D. Scroggie,
Sec. Meets first and third Thursdays, in Orange ~lall,
Day's Block. There are 32 mem bers. In connection with
the Lodge is a Life Iusurance Association, for the benefit
of ►nein bers of the Order .

Court Grove, No. 69, Canadian Order of ForeAere, was
organized Nov . 25, 187 1.), and incorporated the 1st of De-
cembet the same year. Robt. Taylor, C. R . ; Geo. Sel-
wood, R. S. Meets the second and fourth Tuesdays, in
Foresters' Hall, Lower Wyndham street.

Court Perseverance, No. 5866, Ann ient Order of For-
esters, was organized 10 or 12 years ago. W. Marcroft, C.
R . ; Robert IIowie, Sec. Meets every alternate Thursday,
over Bank of Commerce . There are 46 members .

Royal Lod e, No. 60, A. O. U . W., was organized two
years ago . B. Fairley, M. W . ; F. Lawrence, Rdr. Meets
first and third Fridays, over Bank of Commerce. There
are 88 members .
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Guelph Ledge, No. 163, A. O. U. W., was organized in 
January, 1882. C. B. Hayes, L. D. S., M. W. ' • Albert 
Snyder, Recorder. Meets first and second Tuesclays in 
each month. There are 40 member's. 

Beaver Lodge,. No. 56, I. O. G. T., was organized in 
186s. Meets Mondays in Good Templar's Ila11, over Bank 
of Commerce. There are 50 members. 

Guelph Auxiliary of the Dominion Alliance, was organ-
iz,ed in September, 1881. Meets in Temperance Hall, Up-
per Wyndham street. 

Guelph Christian Tetnperance Club. Meets every Sun-
day at 8 pan. in Temperance Hall, Upper Wyndham-
street. 

St. Andrew's Society was organized in 1849. James 
Millar, President ; Duncan Stewart,Sec.-Treasurer. Meets 
monthly. There are 150 members. 

St. George's Society. James Hewer, President ; Wm. 
Read, Secretary. This Society has a large and comrno-
dious hall, on Upper Wyndham street. The membership 
numbers 121t. 

St. Patrick's Benevolent Society. J. L. Murphy, Presi-
dent ;J.  H. Moore, Secretary. 

St. Vincent De Paul Society was organized 16 years ago. 
J. E. McElderry, President ; Francis Nunan, Secretary ; 
Patrick Purcell, Librarian, Meets every Monday evening 
in Boys' Separate School. There are 50 members. The 
library contains 500 volumes. 

Guelph Branch Bible Society. James Hough, Presi-
dent ; David MeCrae,  Sec.; Edwin Newton, Treaeurer ; 
B. Savage, Depositary. 

The Young Men's Christian Association, Alma Block, 
Upper Wyndham street. Free teading rootn. Sabl'ath 
services at 9.30 a.m. Services at the Jail at 3 p.m. each 
Sabbath. Bible readings on Monday evening. 

Guelph Mechanics' Institute, May's Block, Upper Wynd-
ham street. David McCrae, Prest ; John Rogers, Sec. ; 
Miss J. R. Hoskin, Librarian. Reading and recreation 
rooms open from 10 a.m. till 5 p In., and from 7 to 10 in 
the evening. There are 370 members. 

South Wellington Agricultural A ssoçiation, Thomas 

GUELPH. 

Gowdy, President ;  Win. Whitelaw, See.-Treasurer. An-
nual fairs are held. 

Guelph Horticultural Society. James Goldie, Prest. 
Guelph Rifle Association was organized in 1854. Geo. 

Sleeman, Prest. ; R. Stewart, Sec.-Treas. Weekly prac-
tice from May first to October tirst. Range on Waterloo 
avenue. There are 120 members 

Guelph Agricultural Exhibition Building and Curling 
Rink W88 incorporated 15 or 16 years ago. D. Stirton, 
Prest.; John Davidson, Sec.-Treas. 

The Guelph Fat Stock Club was organized in 1881, and 
hold annual shows. Wm. Brown, Prest. ; James Millar, 
Sec—Treas. 

Maple Leaf Base  Bail  Club was organized about 1860. 
Thomas Goldie, Prest. ; James W.Ogston, Sec. The Club 
have a very fine practice ground, located west of the Edin-
burgh road, near the G.W.R. station. The grounds are 
well  fitted up, and have two extensive stands for specta-
tors

' 
 with other necessary conveniences. This Club enjoys 

the honor of being the champion nine of Canada. 
Guelph Lacrosse Club has been organized about 5 years+. 

John Kennedy. Prest, ; James Ogston, Sec. There are 24 
mem bers.  

Guelph Caledonian Society was organized in 1875. Jas. 
Millar, Chief; Chieftains

' 
 D. McCrae, Win. Stewart, G. 

Anderson, jr. Duncan McKenzie ; John Mitchell, See. 
Average yearly mem bershi p, 200. Meets every Thu rsd ay 
evening, in Caledonian Hall, Upper Wyndham street. 

The Speed Skating Rink Co. was incorporated in De-
cember, 1881, and have erected the most handsome rink 
in the Province, a substantial stone building, fitted up with 
all modern improvements. It is located on the river side, 
with entrances from Woolwich and Priory streets. In con-
nection with it is a bowling alley, croquet and tennis lawns, 
&c., and swimming baths are proposed to be added. 

Guelph Union Curling Club was organized in 1838. C. 
Davidson,Patron ; Mrs.  C. Davidson and Mrs. A. Robertson 
Patronesses; D. Stirton, President ; Geo. Murton, Sec.- 
Treas. There are 50 members. 

Guelph Cricket Club was organized in 1846. F. J. 
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Chadwick, Patron ; E. Morris, President; A. W. Murton,
Sec.-Treas. There are 150 members.

Board of Edncttiou.-High School, George Murton, E.
W. McQuire, M.l)., Edwin Newton, W. S. G. Iinuwle,,
Richard Mitchell, Thomas (}olclie. Public Schools,-Alcx.

Mackenzie, Win. Bell, 3. W. Peterson, T. A. Keating,
M.0., Solomon Myers, Alexander Bruce, James Kilgour,
Robert Millar, James Tindal, John Hall, Win. Burgess,
Charles Leonard.

Separate School Board.-John Harris, J. P., Chairman ;
James Keogh, See. ; James Mays, sen., Tros.,;. ; Rev. H.
Lory, S. J., Local SuVt. ; T. J. Day and Denis Coffee,
Auditors. St. Patrick 8 Ward-J. Harris, Denis Nunan,

M.D. St. George's {Mard.-C. Kloept'er, ---, F.
Nunan. St. John's Ward.-James Mays, sen., J. E. Me-
E'tderry. SY.:lavicl's Ward.-James ftyan. St. Andrew's

Ward.-Jas. Keogh, N. Burns. St. ./anr,e,' Ward.-John
Gore, Felix Devlin.

St. George's Church ( Epis.,) on Woolwich street, is a
handsome stone building, of she early E: ►elish style of ar-

chitecture. It was opened in 1573, and was erected at a
cost of $60,000. It has a seating capacity of 900. Services
at 11 a.rn. and 7. p.m. Sunday School at 3 p.m. Week day
services on Wednesdays and at various seasons of the church

year. The Sunday school has an attendance of 360 pupils

and 32 teachers; E. Morris, Supt. ; Harvey Pipe, Libra-

rian. Rev. Canon Dixon, Rector. Rev. Edward A. Irving,

Curate. J. M. Bond and Geo. Murton, Wardens. Miss

Geddes, Organist. The Rectory , ad'oining the Church, was

erected at a cost of $8,(^t10. The Church and Rectory are
considered the finest specimens 4,t' earl y English architec-

tare in Canada. The Church is entirely free from debt.

The Norfolk Street Methodist Church is located on the
corner of Norfolk and Cork streeta. it is astone building,
with a seating capacity of 1,001). It was crected in 1855,
at a cost of $15,000, and was subsequently enlarged and
improve(l at an additional expewliture of $15,0U0. The

property is valued at present at $30,000. Services at 11.30

a.m. and 6.30 pou. Sunday School at 2.30 p.m. Prayer-

pneeting on Wednesday. There are 250 members, and 1,000

(i rsLPH.

meu ► bera ut the congregation. Rev. W. S. Griffin, pastor.
Miss Carrie Stevenson, organist.

The Dublin Street Methudist Church is located on the
corner of Dublin and Suffolk streets. it is a stone building,
with aseatinl; capacity of 850. It was erected in 1874, at
a ec^at, including the lut., of $é6,000. Services at 11 a.m.
and 6.30 p.m. Sunday school at 2.:30 p.m. Prayer meeting
on Wednesday. Young People's rayer meeting on Satur-
day. There are 320 inombers.

p
. J. G. Scott, pastor.

The Primitive Methodii;t Chnrch is a rough-cast building,
on Paisley street, near Nelson Crescent, with a seating
capacity of 150. It was erected alout 1861. Services at
11 a.m and 6.30 .in. Sunclay school at 2.30 p.m. Pra Er
meeting on Wednesday. There are 75 menlbere. v.
John W. Robinson, pastor.

The B. M. E. Church, on Essex street, is a stone building,
in course ofcurnl^letjon, but sufficiently advanced to enable
public service to be held in it. When tinished it will have
a seating capacity of 300. The estiniated cost of the build-
ing is $3,1N)l^. Services at 11 a.rn. and 6.30 p.m. Sunday
School at S p.m. Prayer meeting on Thursday. There
are 40 membere, Rev. Wrn. Collins, pastor.

Chalmer's Chnrch, on Quebec street west, is a stone
building, with a seating capasity of 600. It was erected in
1871, at a cost, including site, of $17,500. Service at 11
a.rn. and 7 p.m. Sunday School at 3 p.m. Prayer meet-
ing on Wednesday. There are 330 members. Rev.
Thomas Wardropo, D.D., pastor; 11. Maitland, precentor.

Knox Church, on Quebec street west is a stone bu.ild-
ing, with a seating capacity of 930. it was erected in
1879, at a cost of $15,000. Services at 11 a.m. and 7 p.m.
Sabbath School a 3. p.m. Prayer meeting on Wednesday.
There are 840 members. The pastorate is vacant.

St. Andrew's Church is located on the corner of Norfolk
and Suffolk streets. It is a stone building, with a seating
capacit^y of' 75G. it was erected in 1856, at a cost of $22,-
00:r. Services at I1 a.m. and 7 p rn. Sunday School at
2.45 p.m. Prayer meeting on Wadnesday. There are
360 members. Rev. James C. Smith, M.A., B. D., pastor.
C. Crawlôrd, leader of choir ; Miss Nellie Foster, or̂ ganist ;
David McCrae, supt. of Sunday school ; G. D. Tringle,
secretary.
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The Baptist Climeh ib a stone building, on Woolwich 
street, with a seating capacity of 750. It was erected 8 or 
10 years ago, at a cost of $25,000. Service at 11 a.m. 
and 6.30 p.m. Sunday school at 2.45 p.m. Prayer meet-
ing ou Wednesday. Young people's meeting on 
Tuesday. There are 253 members. Rev. W. W. Dawley, 
pastor ; Robert Evans, clerk. 

The Congregational Church is a stone building, on the 
corner of Norfolk and Liverpool streets. It was erected in 
1867, at a cost Of $13,000, the present valuation being 
about $20,000. The seating capacity is 500. Services at 
11 a.m. and 6.30 p.m. Sunday school at 2.45 p.m •  Prayer-
meeting on Wednesday. Bible class on Monday. There 
are 180 members. Rev. D. McGregor, M.A., pastor ; S.R. 
Bailey, secretary ; John Crowe, choir leader : David 
Spragge, superintendent Sunday school. 

The Church of Our Lady (R. C.) is a stone building, 
occupying a prominent position on an elevated site at the 
west end of McDonnell street. It was erected in 1876, at 
a cost of $50,000. It has a seating capacity of 1800. 
Services are held each Sabbath at 7.30 a.m., 10,30 a.m. 
and 7 pinu., and on every morning during the year at 6.30 
and 8. Sunday school at 3 p.m. There are 300 fainilies. 
Rev. H. Lory, S.J., pastor. 

The Disciples of Christ hp ve purchased what was known 
as Zion Chapel, a stone building on Bridge street, with a 
seating capacity of '250. Services at 11  am. and 6.30 p.m. 
Sunday school at 2.45 p.m. l'rayer meeting on Wednes 
'illy. There are 41)  members. J. Kilgour, preacher. 

The Plymouth Brethren meet on upper floor, Brownlow's 
block, near the pest office. Breaking of bread at 11 a.in ; 
preaching at 6.30 p.m. Prayer meeting on Wednesday at 
7.30 p.m. Scriptural reading on Friday evening. 

The Christadelphians meet over the store of Geo. Wil-
liams, confectioner, Upper Wyndham street. Exhortation 
and breaking of bread at 11 a.m. A meeting for Scripture 
investigation is also held each Sunday and Wed-
needay evenings at houses of members, the place of 
meeting for asch week being announced at the Sunday 
morning meeting. There are about 30 members. 

The city of Guelph was founded by tl e well known 

novelist, John Galt, who was then acting as Commissioner 
for the Canada Company, the original proprietors of the 
land. The historic spot where the fi rst tree was felled is 
to be found near the Grand Trunk passenger station, the 
embryonic city being then and there christened "Guelph" 
with due solemnity. This event took place on the 23rd of 
April, 1826, being St. George's day Mr. Galt, in speak-
ing of the event, says : 

"The founding of a town, like the launching of a vessel, 
was an era of which the horoscope might be east. I ac-
cordingly appoint,ed a national holiday for the ceretnony 
which secretly I determined should be held in remem-
brance * * • The tree fell with a crash of accumulat-
ing thunder, as if ancient nature were alarmed at the en-
trance of social man into her innocent solitudes, with his 
sorrows, his follies and his crimes. I do not suppi 	list 
the sublimity of the occasion was unfelt by othei 	or I 
noticed that atter the tree fell there was a funereal pause, as 
when the coffin is lowered into the grave ; it was, however, 
of short duration, for Dr. Dunlop pulled a flask of whiskey 
from his bosom, and we drank prosperity to the city of 
Guelph. The naine was chosen in compliment to the 
Royal Family, both because I thonght it auspicious in 
itself, and because I could not recollect that it had ever 
been before used in all the King's dominions. * * * 
In planting the town I stipulated that half the price of 
the building sites should be appropriated to endow a 
school. The school-house was thus among the first build 
ings undertaken to draw settlers." Mr, Robert Thompson, 
still a resident of the city, and one of the first year's set-
tlers, in a sketeh of the early history of Guelph, to which 
we are indebted for the following facts, states that "On the 
centre of this stump, f of the first tree felled] the surveyor, 
John McDonald, planted his compass staff, and declared it 
to be the centre of the city prospective ; but a very seri-
ous difficulty presented itself at this juncture. This tree 
stood near the banks of the River Speed, which formed the 
extreme eastern limits of the plot or hillock set apart as the 
site proper for the town ; i;nd how to fix the centre and 
circumference on one and the same spot Wa8 a problem 
very difficult to solve. The Doctor, however, was gnite 
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equal to the emergency, and at once suggested the ladies'
fan, to which all present gave hearty consent. The stump
was afterwards fenced round, neatly levelled and dressed
on the top, and a sun-dial placed on it, which answered as
the town clock for several years.

"Ready employment and remunerative wages soon
brought reinforcements of craftsmen of various kinds to the
place, insomuch that great inconvenience was experienced
for a time in finding ev)n temporary accommodation for
the workmen and tl ►eir fau► ilies. The first three months
were mainly occu^^ied in clearin g up the land and erecting
log houses in difierent parts of the town."

"Early in Julty an opening celebration was mooted, and
finally the King s birthday was fixed upon for the occasion.
All hands were soon set to work in making the necessary
F reparations. A large trame building to be called a market

ouse was soon in course of' erection, and was to be used
on the occasipn as a place of amusement and téstivit .**
* * The King's birthday happening to fall on Kunday
the celebration must necessarily come off on Monday the
13th, but Sunday did not prove a day of rest. The new
market ' bouse was only about half shingled. The ox had
to be dressed and made ready for the roast, and various
other little preliminaries preparatory to the occasion.
The day came, and visitors from varions parts began to
flock in. The band from "Little York," now Toronto, was
in attendance. Mr. Gurnett, of Ancaster, editor of the
Gore Gazette, was present, and had quite a length y article
in his next issue. Waterloo, Galt, Eramosa, and Wool-
wich, were all represented. About 500 strangers in all
were presept early in the morning. The dressed ox had
been placed on a windlass in front of a burning log pile and
turned as on a spit for about six hours. He was th°n cut
in pieces and served up. Two pot-ash kettles of potatoes
were by this time also ready for serving up, together with
plenty of bread, hemlock tea and whiskey. The entire
company were supplied with a plain but sumptuous din-
ner ; the only attempt at ornamentation being the head and
horns of the bullock placed on a large aide dish at .the head
of one of the tables. All were satisfied that the ox had
been roasted whole, but very few of those who partook be-
lieved that the whole of the ox was roasted.

"Next on the programme was the ceremony of laying the
foundation stone of the two first stone building in the
town. One of those was iutended for a bank. ^t was lo-
cated on or about the spot where the Grand Trunk Pas-
senger Station now stands. It was finished in the spring
of 1828, and used for so•nt montlis as an office by some of
the Canada Coin ^auy's clerke, The other referred to was
a school-house, ^ooated a féw chains further to the east.
Mr. David Mathews was the teacl ►er in this house for the
first ten or fifteen years. It was also used as a meeting-
house or church by the various reli ► iou:i denominations for
several years after its erection. 'l^le amusements of the
day were varied and diversified. The only thing that
attracted much attention was the firing of wooden cannon.
These were made of beech and maple logs about two feet in
length a ►Id one foot in diameter, with a two-inch bore, and
bound with three strong iron bands, generally bursting about
the first or second shot. A few lights brou lit the day's
proceedings to a close, and the crowd generally dispersed.
Some, however, of the more aristocratic, remained for the
evening. A ball and supper was to corne off in the priory.
The tables were spread in the main building, as yet in
an unfinished state. From sixty to eighty sat down to a
sumptuous supper, Mr. Galt at the head of the table, and
the old Doctor acting üs Vice. What followed the remov-
ing of the cloth can be easier imagined than described.
Suffice it to say the `nicht drave on wi' sangs and clatter,
and aye the grog was growin better.' The ball was ud off
by Mr. Galt and Mrs. Leaden. Farther on in the evening,
however, a row ensued, and one Thomas Brown, acting as
Constable pro tam., while endeavouring to restore peace,
had his hand badly cut by a carving knife in the hands of
one of the rioters. Brown was in consequence appointed
Grog Boss among the company's workmen. This Brown
was father of the first child born in the town. Letitia
Brown, intânt, was the grantee of a house and lot as a free
grant from the Canada Company promised to the first born
in the town. The lot referred to is eighty-five on Quebec
street.

"A brisk business in building continued dnring the re-
mainder of the season. The buildings, however, were for
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the most part of a somewhat different class from those
erected in the early part of the season. A frame store was
erected and kep t by the firm of Gilkinson & Leaden. It
stood on East Market Square, near the Grand Trank Sta-
tion. A saw-mill was erected by the same firm on the
site where the People's Mill now stands. Jenkins & Oliver
built a stone store, just opposite the first mentioned, on the
north-west side of the square. * * * Early in the
spring of 1S28 two other stores were opened on the south
side of Upper Market Square-one by Thomas MeVane,
who occupled a log house opposite the drill shed ; the other
was a frame building, a little farther eastward, with one
Charles McCrae as its proprietor."

"By this time the town had assumed such pro portions
that it was deemed desirable to hold semi-annual fairs. So
the first Mondays in May and November were• the days
named. The first May Fair in Guelph was a day long to
be remembered. The show of stock, however, was some-
thing very different from what was exhibited at our last
Easter Fair. Three cows and two yoke of oxen eomprised
the entire stock on the ground." "A portion of what is
known as the old burying ground, was cleared off ear?y in
August, 1828, and the first one buried was a man named
Reid, one of the first year's settlera in the Scotch Block on
Elora Road."

The first death was that of a brewer or beer peddlar,
named Stephen Tuttle, who was killed by the fall of a tree,
on the Waterloo road.

The first permanent Sunday school was established in
connection with the Methodist Society, by Mr. James
Hough, in July, 1836. The first school teacher in the
town was a man named Davis, who opened a private school
for a few months towards the end of 1827. An office for
job printing was opened on Waterloo street early in 1828,
by a man named Chatterton, existin g only six months. The
Canada Company's offer of :► town lot and house for the
first weaving done in the town was awarded to the late
James Hodgert, Esq., who had a loom running in the
winter of 1827-8. This lot is situated on the corner of
Quebec street and St. George's Square, lately the property
of Messrs. Heffernan. The first marriage solemi:lzed was

that of Christopl ►e: iieougll to Miss Ann Green, in Septem-
ber. 18:37. The first practicing physician in the town was
a Doctor Welsh, in 1827.

Guelph was incuruorated as a tuwn in 1856, with a popn-
ulation of 3,000, whiclo had increased to 5,500 in 1867, and
in 1879, on the 52nd anoiveraary of the cuttino of the first
tree, was declared a city by Royal Proclamation, with a
population of nearly 11,000.

MsRnaN is a post village on the Elora road, four miles
from Guelph, and contains a store, blacksmith and wagon
shop, hotel E(nd 30 inhabitants. The post office was estab•
liwhed about 1854, Colin 131yth being the firat postmaster.
1'-i-weekly mail.

MosaosouoH is a post office and station on the G.T.R.,
five miles west of Guelph.

The township commenced settling in 1827 and in 45
years I'rom that date it was reported all settled. The first
settlers were mostly English, Scotch and Irish emigrants
from the British Isles, and man y of them were from the
counties of Norfolk, Suffolk and Yorkshire. In 1829 the
population amounted to 778, which in 1850 had increased
to 4,399. In 1856 the town of Guelph became a separate
municipality. The population of the township at the pres-
ent time is 2,616.

MAftYBOROUGIi township is bounded on the north
by the township of Arthur ; on the east by Peel ; and on
the south and west by Perth County. It has an area of 64,-
775 acres, 34,630 of which are cleared. It is all settled
but 200 or 300 acres. The timberiR principally hardwood.
The surface is nearly all rolling, and the soil clay and clay
loam, one-fourth being heavy clay and the rest clay loam,
the depth being from 20 inches to two feet. It was origin-
ally covered with black loam. Seventy per cent. of the
land is reported first-class agricaltural soil, twenty per
cent. second-class, and ten per cent. third-class. The chief
products of the soil are fall wheat, spring wheat, barley,
oate, peas and hav, of which it yields large returns, and a
considerable portion is devoted to pasturage, the townihip
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sustaining a number of first-elaas cattle. lie township is 
well wat,ered by numerous branches of the Conestoga River. 
The W.G. & B.R.R. traverses the central portion, passing 
through Drayton and Moorefield. There are twelve post 
offices in the township, viz. : Bosworth, Dorking, Hollen, 
Huston, Lebanon, Moorefield, Riverbank, Rothsay, Stirton, 
Teviotdale, Trecastle and Wyandotte. 

BOSWORTH is a post village on the line of Peel, and on the 
Owen Sound Road, three miles north of Drayton, and 26 
miles from Guelph. It contains a store, tailor shop, black-
smith shop, hotel and 75 inhabitants. 

DORKING is a post village on the line of Peel, and 
lying partly in Perth and Waterloo counties, distant from 
Moorefield 10 miles. It contains a Methodist church, hotel, 
store, cooperage, two blacksmith shops, and 75 inhabitants. 

- The Canada Methodist Church is a frame building, seat-
ing 100. Services at 2.30 p.m. Sunday school at 1 p,,tn. 
Rev. Mr. Sherlock of Gilen Allan officiates. 

The post office ha  s been established about 25 years. 
Daily mail. 

Howm is a post village in the south-east part, near the 
line of Peel, five miles from Drayton and the same from 
Moorefield, stations of the W.G. & B.R.R., and 34 miles 
from Guelph. The Conestoga River passes through the 
place, affording an excellent water privilege. The village 
contains an hotel, blacksmith shop, tannery, tailor shop, 
flouring mill, wagon shop, store, two churches, and 150 in-
habitants. 

The Hollen Mill (flouring) has been established over 30 

years, and has two runs of stones, with a capacity of from 
15,000 to 20,000 bushels annually. Wm. Patter. 

Britannia Lodge, No. 198, I. 0. 0. F., was organized in 
1878. Josepi Garbutt, N. G.; W. H. Mannell, Sec.; 
meets each alternate Friday. There are 30 members. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, 
seating 600. It was erected about 20 years ago at a cost 
of $3,000. Services at 10.30 a.m., and 6.30 p.m. Sunday 
school at 9 a.m. Prayer meeting on Wednesday. Rev. 
Benj. Sherlock, of Glen Allan, pastor. 

kARYBOROUGH. 	 ELVIL 

The Presbyterian Church is a brick building, seating 
300. It was erected about 17 years ago at rs cost of $1,500. 
It was struck by lightning two years ago, and repaired at 
a cost or $1,2 ■j0. Services at 2.30 p. in. Sunday school at 
1 p.m. There are 50 members. Rev. James Bryant, of 
Glen Allan, pastor. 

The village was laid out by Hugh Hollfnshead, some 30 
years ago, and the post office established about the same 
tune,  with Samuel Robertson as post-master, who also 
kept the first store. John Collum was the first hotel 
keeper. Hugh Hollinshead erected the first grist and 
saw mill. Aaron Kells taught the first school. The 
Methodists built the first church, with Rev. Mr. Adams as 
preacher. The first meeting of the township council was 
held at Mr. Hollinshead's house. Daily mails are received. 

HUSTON  is a post village on the west branch of the Con-
estoga River, one mile from Moorefield. It contains a 
store, pump factory, and 50 inhabitants. The post office 
was established about 1854 ; Capt. Wm. Robinson being 
the first post master. 

LEBANON is a post office in the south-west part, on the 
leading road front Glen Allan to Listowel, distant from 
Guelph 40 miles. 

MOOREFIELD is a post village on the Conestoga River, 
about the centre of the township, and is also a station on 
the W. G. & B. R. R., distant from Palmerston seven 
miles and from Guelph 33 miles. It contains three 
churches, two blackstnith shops, a hardware and stove 
store, three hotels, two general stores, a cooper shop, two 
harness shops, two groceries, two shoe shops, a bakery, 
drug store, livery stable, paint shop, tailor shop, wagon 
shop, and 350 inhabitants. 

L. O. L. No. 645, James Kyle, W. M.; James Kyle, Jr.. 
Sec. Meets first Thursday in each tnonth. There are 25 
members. 

St. John's Church (Episcopal) is a frame building seating 
200. Services at 2.30 p. in.  Sunday School at 1.30 p. m. 
There are 30 families. Rev. Edward Westmacott, incum-
bent. This Church is erecting a new edifice, of brick, 
with a seating capacity of 200, at a cost of $1,800. 

xLvt. 
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The Canada Methodist Church is a b rick buildin seat-

ing 250. I t was erected in 1 14 76 at a cost of t2,000.
Services at 6 .30 p.m . Sabbath School at 9 .30 a .ln . Prayer
meeting on Thursday . There are forty members. Rev.
Samuel Tucker .

The Presbyterian Chuich is aframe building seating 200 .

It was erected four years ago at a coFt of $t4;00 . Services

at 3 p . in . Sunday School at 1 .45 p . in . Prayer meeting
on Wednesday. 'there are 45 melnbers. Rev. R. H. Edmi-
son, of Rotheay, pastor . The society is about erectiag a
brick church, at a cost of $1,50 0 .

The village was laid out in 1872, and the post office was
opened November 1st of that year, henry Maudsley, M.D.,
being the first post-master. JoRhua Gregory and John C .
Robinson were the first merchants . Roland Bel'' -- the
first hotel . Abraham Wade opened the first blackeln . . " p.
The Baptists built the first chnrch in the village proper,
although the Episcopals had a church close by . They were
followed by the Woslens and Presbyterians. The first
resident minister was R . Robert I)oherty, B . D., of the
Church of England, now of Omaha, Net). The telegraph
office wrs opened Deaember 20, 1872.

RIVBRSSNx is a post office in the north part, on the line
of Peel, and near the Arthur line, six miles from Arthur
village.

RoTHeAY is it post village on the Eloraand Saugcen road,
four miles north of Moorefleld and 29 from Guelph. The
Conestoga River passes through the place, afiording
excellent manufacturing facilities . 'lhe village contains
three churches, an hotel, tannery, glove factory, tbree stores,
a carriage shop, flouring and saw mill, two blacksmith
shops, a carding mill, ehing % mill, harness shop and 250
inhabitants .

The carding mill of Thos . Holmes lias been established
13 yeara and employs two or threo hands, In connection
witll the above is a shingle mill .

The tannery and glove factory of Win. Barber has been
established lu years, and employs three hands in the manu-
facture of leather and sheepekins, an d leather and fur gloves
and mits .

D[A RYBOROUGH, XLIX .

The flouring mill of Joshua Gregory has been established
10 years, and has thre ( rune of stones, besides rollera, with
a capacity of 75 barrels daily. A saw mill in connection
manufactures Inmber and lath .

The Rothsay Mutual Improvement Society was organized
four years ago for musical and literar im provelnent by
readings, recitations, debates, &c. Wy H. Lowes, Prest . ;
John A nderson, Sec. Meets Fridays .

L. O. L. No. 976, was organized 20 ~y~ears ago . John
McLauchlen, W. M . ; Win . Anderson, becretary . Meets
the first Wednesday in each month .

The village was laid out by Messrs . Allan and Geddes,
of Elora, about 26 years ago . Win. West was the first
mercbsnt and post master . John Hastings kept the first
hotel . The Presbyterians erected the firat church. Rev.
Daniel Anderson was the first resident minister .

STiRTOn is a post village on the line of Peel and on the
Conestoga River, two miles south of Drayton. It is divided
into two parts, tbree•qaarters of a mile apart, called Uppe r
and Lower Stirton. It contains a Primitive Methodist
church, a blackamith shop, store, hotel, wagon shop, paint
shop, flax mill, saw mill, shoe shop, tannery, and 150 inhab-
itants.

The Maryborough Flax Mill has been established 22
years, and employs 25 handa in the winter season, and
about 60 in summer. Chas. Hendry. There is a saw mill
in connection .

The tannery of J . L. Braun, has been established 21
years.

The Primitive Methodist Chu i ch is a frame building,
seating 200. Set vices at 6.30 p .m . Sunday school at 1 .30.
Prayer meeting on Wednesday. Rev. Abram Tonge .

TSVIOTDAiE is a post village on the Elora and Saugeen
road, at the angles of the townships of Maryhorongh, Minto
and Wallace, seven miles from Harriston and four from
Palmerston . It contains a Methodist church, a store, shoe
shop, wagon shop, hotel, blacksmith shop and fifty inhabit-
ants .

a
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The Canada Methodist Church is a f'rame building, eeat-
ing 150. Services at 11 a. m. Sunday school at 10.
Rev. Mr. Broley, of Palmerston, pastor.

The post office was established about i 2 years ago, with
Alex. Scott as postmaster.

TBSCSSTLS is a post village on the Wallace line, five
miles south of Palmerston. The W. G. & B. R. R. runs
within a mile of the village. It contains an M. E. church,
an hotel, store, carriage shop, blacksmith shop, saw mill
and 50 inhabitants.

The saw mill of H. J. Powley has been establ ished 22
years, and employs four or five hands.

L. O. L. No. 531. Henry Powley, W. M.; Samuel G.
Dixon, Sec. Meets first Monday in each month. There
are 15 or 20 members.

The M. E. Church is a frame bnilding, seating 150. it
was erected in 1876. Services at 2.30 p.m. Rev. Mr.
Ottwell, of Palmerston, pastor.

The village was first settled by Chas. Cowan and Rev. G.
C. Moore. The post office was established in 1855, with
Freeborn Kee as postmaster.

WYerrDOrrF is a post office south of the center, five miles
from Moorefield.

The township cominen ced settling in 1848, and was all
settled in 15 vears. It was incurporated in 1851, the
first meetin g f)eing held on the 20th of January of that
year. Hugh Hollinshead was the first reeve, who with S.
Hamley, Joseph Medill, John Johnson and Win. Black,
constituted the first township council. Alex. Andersoi.
was the first clerk and treaenrer. Paul Wilson and Al-
mond Healy were the first aesessors; Robert Hay and
John McKeeman, collectors; and Hen ry Smith and Wm.
Dalley, auditors. In ] 850 the township contained 58' ,
inhabitants, and at the present time has a population of
4,030.

MINTO township lies at the extreme north-west corner
of the cuunty. It is bounded on the north by Bruce
county ; on the east by the township of Arthur; on the
eouth by l'erth county, and on the west by Huron county.

YiNTO. LI.

Ths surface is moderately rolling and the soil mostly clay
and sandy loam, with a small proportion black loam and
heavy clay , and about I1 per cent swampy . The soil is
very productive, yielding good crops of fall and spring
wheat, barley, oats, peas, hay, and a good proportion is de-
voted to hasturage, stock raising hcing carried on to a large
extent. lit is well watered by numerous creeks and streams.
The Elora and Saugeen Road passes diagonally through
the township from the south-east to the north-west corner.
It is also traversed by the W. G. &[l. R. R., which passes
through Palmerston, Harriston and Clifford ; the T. G.
& B. R. It, which passes through Harriston ; the Stratford
and Lake Huron,passing through Palmerston and Harriston;
and the Georg ian Bay branch of the G. T. R., which
terminates at i'almerston. The area of the township is
69,000 acres, 34,335 of which are cleared. The timber
consists o:' hardwood, cedar and hemlock. The population
amounts to 3,798. There are six post offices in the town-
ship, viz.:-Clifford, Cotewold, Drew, Harriston, Palmer.
ston and Sinithurst.

CLIFFOBD is an incorporated village in the north•west
corner on the Saugeen road, and is it station of the W. G.
& B. Ii. R. It is distant from Walkerton 16 miles, from
Harristun seven miles, and from Guelph 47 miles. The
Red River passes through the place, affording a good water
privilege. The village contains two churches, five
general stores, two grocery stores, a liquor store, pump
tactory, two tanneries, two butcher shops, four hotels, three
tailor shops, three book stores, two photograph galleries,
an ashery, hardware store, two bakeries, two stove stores,
a furniture store, two boot and shoe etores, a planing mill
and sash, door and blind factory, a coffin factory, banking
house, two carriage shops, a drug store, jewellery store, three
blacksmith shops, a cooperage, livery stable, harness shop,
flonring mill, a manufaetory of lumber, lath, shingles,
staves, heading and hemlock bark, and 700 inhabitants.

The Clifford Tannery has been e3tablished 14 yeare and
employa five or sit hands in the mannsactnre of npper,
kip, calf and harness leather. Bock & Lee.,



LII. 	 WELLINGTON COUNTY DIRECTORY. INTO. Litt. 	' 

11 

The Clifford Mille (flouring) have been eatablialted 16 
years and contain four runs ot stones, with a capacity of 
125 barrels a day. Smith  Broc. & Dutton. 

The coffin manufactory of J. E. Kerr employ's 10K 12 
hands. 

The Union Mill bits  been established tett years and em-
ploys Ut bands in the manufacture of lumber, lath, shin-
gles, staves, heading and hemlock bark. J. & G. Veitch. 

The planing mill of Samuel Hotel lias teen established 
four years and employe six to eight hands in the manufac-
ture  of sili, doora, blinds, and a general building businesa. 

The Coun Creek Tannery  lias  been established eiett 
years, and employs four or five hands in the manufacture 
ut  aaddlers' and shoemakers' leather. Fredrick W. Graff. 

Clifford Lodge, No. 315, A. F'. and A. M., WES organized 
in 1872. James Allan, W.M. John G. Jeffrey, See. 
Ideets on the third Monday in each month. There are `A 
members. • 

Clifford Lodge, No. 214, 1.0.0.F., wate organizol  in  
January 1879. M. B. Mathewson, N.G. B. R. Dillabaugh, 
R.S. Ikea Thursdays. There are 70 members. 

Cliflord L.O.L. No. 1362. Joseph Young, WM. Wm. 
Mills, See. Meets on Monday on or befbre full moon. There 
are 30 men I ters. 

'11 Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seal-
ing -1,re. It was erected in 1b77 at a cost of $6,000. Set-
vices at 10.30 a.m. and 7 p.m. Sunday etchool at 2.a. 
Prayer meeting on Tuesday. There are 80 members. Rev. 
John C. Stevenson. 

Knox Church (Presb.) is a trame building, seating 350. 
Services at 11 a.m. and 7 p.m. Sunday school at 2.30. 
Prayer meeting on Wednesday. There are 150 members, 
Rev. Stephen Young. 

The village was laid out about 1858 by James Geddes 
and Charles Allan, and the post office W RE opened goon af 
ter, with Francis Brown as postmaster. George McDonald 
kept the ffist store and Francis Brown the first hotel. The 
New Connexion hiethodists built the first church. The 
village was incorporated in January, 1874. 

' CtrrawoLD is a post office on the Saugeen road, five miles 
sonth-eaat ut Harriston. 

DREW i8 a post office on the Government road, between 
Mt. Forest and Clifford, four miles north of Harriston, and 
two miles wtst of Drew Station, on the S. & L.H.R.R. 
Semi-weekly mail. 

lIsaiusron iS a flourishing incorporated town, aituated 
about the centre of the township, on the Maitland River, 
and surrounded by a fertile agricultural district. It ie regu-
larly laid out, and ita public and private buildings will 
compare favorably with those of much older towns. Its 
mercantile and manufacturing interests are well sustained 
and the subatantial and handsome appearance of its various 
church and school buildings, testify that the educational 
and spiritual intereeta of the population are not unappreci-
ated. The main street containa a number of good business 
blocks, giving the appearance of a thrifty, prosper-
ous trade. Two first-claaa hotels, the (Alison House and 
the Royal, with a 'mintier of other comfortable inns, afford 
a cotnfo. rtable home for the traveller. Its manufacturing 
interests are quite numerous for the size of the town, and 
all appear to be in a prosperoua condition. its railroad fault-
itits, by means of the W.G. & B. R R., the T. G. and B. 
R.R , and Stratford and Lake Huron R.R., are unfair-
passed, and make it an important outlet for the large grain 
and cattle  trace  of which it is a centre. An ably managed 
local paper, the flarrieton Tribune, is published here, 
which is liberally stuttained. Harriston is distant from 
Toronto 98 miles, and from Guelph, 42 miles, and hao a 
population of about 1,800. 

The Harriston Woolen Mills were established in 1882, 
and etnploy front 10 to 12 Ilan& in the manufacture of 
flannels, tweeds, yarns, &c. Wm Weatherstone. 

'fhe saw mill of J. It. Preston has been eatablished 15 
years, and employs 12 to 15 hands in the manufacture of 
lumber, lath and shingles. 

The Harriston Cabinet Factory employs 45 hands in the 
manufacture of furniture and a general building business. 
Dowling & Leighton. 

The Great Western Mill (flouring)  lias  been established' 
three years, and has two runs of stoned, with a capacity of 
80 barrels a day. Benj. D. White. 

• 
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The Harriston Industrial Works were established in 
1881, and employ 5 or 6 hands in the manufacture of the 
Champion Fanning Mill. Kline, Abernethy & Jackson. 

The carriage works of Mason & Parsons have been 
established three years, and employ 12 hands in the manu-
facture of carriages, wagons, sleighs, etc., general jobbing 
and horseshoeing. 

The flouring mill of Thomas Wile At, was established 
in 1871, and has three runs of stones, with a capacity of 
30 barrels a day. 

The Harriston Agricultural Works have been established 
15 years and employ 14 hands in the manufacture of mow-
ers, reapers

' 
 threshing machines, plows, rakes, and other 

agricultural implements. Aeorge Stong. 
The Harriston Pottery  lias  been etablished 12 years, and 

employs three or four hands in the manufacture of earthen-
ware.  Win  Cadwell. 

The soda water works of J. B. Taylor have been estab-
lished 10 years, and employ three or four hands. 

The cabinet factory  of  E. Welte has been established 18 
years, and employs five hands in the manufacture of furni 
ture. 

The flax mill of G. & J. Garbie has been established 
six rars, and employs 15 hands. 

'hie Harriston Cheese Factory has been cuitablished 8 or 
10 years, and uses the milk of 400 cows Stewart S. 
Johnston. 

The Harriston Marble Works, of W. J. Stewart & Son, 
employ five hands. 

The planing mill  of George Gray has been established 
11 years, and employa from 15 to 20 hands in the manu-
facture of sash, doors and blinds, and a general building 
business. 

The Saw Mill of J. F. Wilson lias  been established 12 
years and employs from 8 to 10 hands in the manufacture 

of lumber, lath and shingles. 
The brick yard of J. F. Wilson has been established 10 

or 12 years and employs six hands, turning out 500,000 
bricks annually. 

The carriage works of Fisher .&  Irvine have been estab-
lished 11 years and employ 30 hands. The works are being 

me,  

considerably enlarged which when completed a much larger 
force will be employed. 

The Mechanics' Institute was organized in 1874. A. J. 
Stewart, President ; R. R. Hopkins, Secretary ; R. H. Young, 
Librarian. The library contains 1,400 volumes, to which 
a reading room is attached. There are 175 members. 

Banner Encampment, No. 43, I. O. O. F., was organize ' 
in 1879. Geo. Harvey, C.P.; J. Taylor, Sec. Meets first 
and third Wednesdays. There are members. 

Minto Lodge, No. 98, I. 0. 0. F., was organized about 
1872. Wm. Farr, N.G.; Wm. Morley, R. S. Meets Fri-
days. There are 80 members. 

Harriston Lodge, No. 127. A. O. U. W., was organized 
in 1881. R. Blackwood, M. W.; W. T. Watson, Recorder ; 
D. Hoppins, Receiver. Meets second and fourth Thurs-
days. There are 30 members. 

Enterprise Chapter, No.67, R. A. M., has been organized 
about seven years. John Livingstone, Z.; E. H. Dewar, 
Scribe E. Meets first Tuesday in each month. There are 
40 members. 

Harriston Lodge, No. 262, A. F and A. M., was organiz-
ed 12 or 14 years ago. James Smith, W. M.; Alex. Yule, 
Sec. Meets Monday on or after full moon. There are 66 
members. 

Harriston L. O. L. No. 1152, WAR organized about 1861. 
James Lennox, W.M.; Joseph Taylor, Sec. Meets first 
Thursday in each month. There are 35 tnetnbere. 

Court Harriston, No. 34, 1. 0. F., was organized in 1879. 
W. T. Watson, C.R.; R. R. Hopkins, R.S. Meets second 
and third Thursdays. There are 30 members. 

Knox Church (Presb.) was erected in 1878, and is the 
finest in the town. It is built of red brick with white brick 
facing, of Gothic architecture, ornamented with a beautiful 
spire 125 teet high. The windows are of stained glass. 
The seating capacity is about 600. The congregation is 
the largest in the town. The pastor is Rev. John Campbell, 
B.A. The Kirk Session are Messrs. J. Henderson, Clerk, 
T. Thompson, D. lieNiven, P. Kean, J. McConachie, R. 
McEachern, Wm. McEacliern, Neil White. Services at 11 
a. ru. and 7 p. in. Sunday school at 2.30 p. m. Bible claas 
on Tuesday. Prayer meeting on Wednesday, fhere are 
290 members. 
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Guthrie Church (Presb.) is a brick building, seating 600, 
It was erected in 1878 at a cost of over $11,000. Then, 
are few church buildings west of Toronto as well finiahed 
inside. Thu windows are of stained glue and the attire!, 
lit with gasoline. Services at 11 a. m. and 7 p m. Sunda) 
school at 3 p. In. Prayer meeting on Wednesday. There 
are 200 members. Rev. John Baikie. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
ing 600. It was erected in 1875 at a coat of $7,000. In 
connection with it is a co n fortable brick parsonage, elected 
at a cost of $9,000. Services at 11 a. m. and 7 p. in. 

 Sunday school at 2.30. Prayer meeting on Wednesday. 
Bible c. lasa on Friday. The Sabbath school haft 350 seholars, 
with an average attendan t e Of 270, and 30 teachers. In 
connection with the chinch is a litera, society called 
" The Young People's Society of Progress," which is well 
sustained. The elturell has 200 members. Rev. G. A. 
Mitchell, B. A. 

The Primitive Methodist Church is a frame building 
seating 200, erect •d 15 or 16 years ago. The society also 
have a substantial brick paraonage. Services at 11 a.m. 
and 7 p.m. Prayer meeting on Wednesday. There are 30 
members. Rev. Jaunt% Walker. 

St. George's Church (I  pis.) is a frame building, seating 
200. It was erected about 12 years ago. Services at 11 
a.m. and 7 Pin.;  also  on Thursday evening. Snnday 
school at 2.30. There are about 50 families. Ftev. Wm. 
Niamey, M. A. 

The town was laid out by Archibald Harrison 28 years 
ago. The post office was established a year or two after, 
with Mr. IIarrison as postmaster. Among the first settlers 
were lhoa. Webb, John Niven, Malcolm Wright, Thos. 
Hartley, A .eliibald, Joahua, Joseph and Geo. Harrison, D. 
Briderd, .\. Montgomery, John Livingstone, Alex. Mc-
Cready and others. The first merchant was a Mr.Mc-
Kinnon. Archibald Harrison kept the first hotel. The 
Presbyterians erected the first church. Rev. Geo. Mc-
Lennan wee the firat reaident minister. John Brown 
taught the first school. The town was incorporated four 
or five years ago, Alex Meiklejohn being the first mayor. 
It was incorporated  as a village three or four years previous. 

PALmaasTos is an incorporated town on the south line, 
lying partly in the township of Wallace, Perth County 
It is pleasantly located and surrounded by a fertile agt:i-
cultural  country, the products of which here find a pro-
fitable market. It is also the headquarters of the W. G. & 
B. Division of the G. T. R. whose various branches radiate 
from this point in all directions, tnaking it an inq)ortatit 
railroad centre. The W. G. & B. R. R , and S. & L. H. R. 
R. pass through the town. and it is also the southern ter-
minus of the Georgian Bay and Kincardine branchee of 
the W. G. & B. R. R. which, with their various connections, 
render it easy of access from all points of the Province. 
Palmerston enjoys a fair share of commercial proeperity, as 
is evident by the numerous subatantial looking business 
blocks and stores which line its principal streets. Its 
manufacturing industries are quite numerous t■ir the age 
of the town and successfully prosecuted, and in its church 
and school facilities it is by no means behind many places 
of tnuch older growth. It is distant from Toronto el miles, 
and front Guelph 43 miles. An ably conducted weekly 
journal, the Palmereton Telegraph, is published here. , 
which is liberally sustained. The population is 1,800. 

Palmerston Brewery has been established three yeaN 
and employs 30 hands in the manufacture of ale, porter 
and lager, turning out 12,000 barrels annually. L. H. Clarke. 

The Palmerston Saw and Planing Mills have been e4- 
tablished six years and employ 10 hands in the manufacture 
of lumber, sash, doors, blinds, and a general building busi-
ness. McDonald & Campbell. 

The Palmerston Woolen Mill lias been establiahed six 
years and employa  nine hands in the manufacture of 
blanketa, flannels, stocking yarn &c. John Davis. 

The Palmerston Chilled Plow Works have been establish-
ed three yeara and employ 15 hands, turning out 1,500 
plows annually. Oliver & Carter. 

The Palmerston Flax Mills were established in 1876. 
Kearns, Clegg & Co. 

The Palmerston Cheese Factory was established in 1881 
and turns ont 1000 cheeses annually .  

5 
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The planing mill of Geo. Ratz has been established three
years, and employs four or five hands in the manufacture
of lumber, shiugloo and planing.

Court Piince of Wales, No.35,1:: U. H'., was orgauized
in September, 1S50. J. I). Hayhurat, C.R.; Win. Ranton,
R.S.; A. Campbell, F.S. Meets the tint and third Wed-
nesdays. There are 20 tueu ► here.

Blair Lodge, No. ;i14, G. It. C. Thue. Bennetto, W.M.;
.1. N ioull, Sec. Meeta Friday after full moon. There are
70 members.

Palmerston Ludge, No. 1,!3. I. 0. 0. F., was or anized
six or eight ^•eun+ ago. (3co. Elliott, N.G.; T. Barnum,
See. Meets Thur.+daye, in Odd Fellows Hall, corner of
Main and Jane streets. There are SNt members.

Palmerston L,dl,►e of True Blues, No. 655. Robert
Keurn<, W.M.; John Campbell, Sec. Meets the first
Tuesda,}•^in each month. There are 20 members.

The MeehanicK Inatitutc w^^, organized in Septernber,
1882. Rev. J. II. Fletcher, ^r"bt.; W. J. Gall-rarth, Sec.;
J. W. Watson, librar4^n. There are 1U0 member,:. Fee
$1.00. Rootns, McEwing's block, Main street.

The Bible Christian Church is a frame building, seating
200. It was erected in 1874. Services at 6.3J p.m. Sun-
day school at 2.30. Prayer meeting on Wednesday. There
are 40 members. Rev. Geo. Smith.

The Canada Methodist Church if, a trame building,
soating 500. Services at 10.30 a.m. and 6.30 p .m. Snn-
day scttool at 2.30. Prayer meeting on Thursday. There
are ICO members. Rev. .laines Brolev.

St. Paul's Church (lrpis.) is a brick building, seating
200. It was erected eight or ton years ago. Services at
11 a.tn. and 7 p.tn. 8unday school at 2.30. There are
200 families. Rev. J. H. Fletcher.

Knox Church (Presh.) is at stone building, seating 400.
It was erected seven years ago at a cost of $5,000. Ser-
vices at 11 a.m. and 6.30 p.m. Sunday school at 2.30.
Prayer meeting on Wednesday, There are 176 members.
Rev. J. M. Anh.

The M. R. Church is a brick building, Eeatiiig 300. It
was erected 6ve or six years ago at a cost, including a neat
frame parsonage adjoining, of Services at 10.30
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a. in. and 6.80 p. m. Sunday school at 9 a. m. Prayer
meeting on Wednesday. There are 70 members. Rev.
Wm. (ktwell.

Few p7aces in the Province can boast of such a rapid
growth as Palmerston, as less than a dozen years are the
site on which it stands was covered with the primeval
forest. The town was laid out in 1871 by Wm. Thomp-
son and Thoa. McI)owell, and the post office was opened
the same year with Richard Johnston aa twatmaster.
John McDermott, of Wallace, was accorded the honor of
nawinK the town, for his successful efforts iu securing the
railroad. J. T. Caswell was the 8ret merchant. Wm.
Thompson kept the first hotel and erected the first house.
The Wt*le erected the first church. Rev. Mr. Allan
was the timt pastor. The town wu incorporated by
sp^^^ial act in December, 1874. Thos. McDowell was the
Sr st mayor, continuing as snch for six years.

Surrau>tBr is a{ ►ost office three miles end of Clifford and
three qûarters of a mile from Drew Station, on the S. & L.
H. R. R. Semi-weekly mail.

The township commenced settling in 1868, and was all
settled by 1865.

N ICH<)L township isbonnded on the north by the town-
ships of Garafra:a and Peel ; on the east by Garafraxa and
ErNmt,sa; on the south by Guelph, and on the west by
Pilkinlttun. It is about the central township in the county.
About one-third of the surface is rolling land, and a fourth
is reported of a wet, springy character. The soil is princi-

ally a clay loam, nearly all being 6rst-cl ass agricultural
Yand, yielding guod crops of fall and epring wheat, barley,
oata, peas, tnrniPn, hay, &c. Considerable attention is also
paid to stock raising. The timbor consists of beech, maple.
elm, bass i►ood, cedar and awamp timber. The township u
liberally watered by the Grand and Irvine Rivers and other
smaller streams. the ares, of the township is 26,730 acres,
19,744 of which are cleared. The population amonnts to
2,176. There are five post offioes in the township, vis.,
Barnett, Cuinnock, Elora, Fergus and Salem.

I

i



N'RI.LINOTON ('OH'NTl' DIRR(TORl'.

AIw/TeIY P. U. addraw f:lural is a small village on the
Grand River, a short distance from Elora, and contains an
hotel fluuring Inill, flax mill, and 75 inhabitants.

The Aboyne Mills (flouring) have been established 18
years and contain four runs of Nt-,nes and it chopper.
Ca ^acity 2^'0 barrels a day . B. McMahon.

The Aboyne Flax Mill has been established li3 years
and elu p lops 15 hands, turning out b00 tons of flax annu-
ally. M. B. I'errine & Co.

I3asrnrrr, or Ennottville, is a post village on the Owen
Sound Road, four miles south of Fergus, and nine miles
from (3uelph. It contains a store, hotel and 50 inhabitants.

The Ennottville I'tlrmP.+'A, and Mechanics Institute was
organized over 20 years ago. Wm. Beattie, Prebident;
James McDonald, Secretary ; John librarian.

James Emslie was the tint postlnaster.
Cunningham.

ri•weekly mail.

Cvrttlocx is a lwst village on the line of Peel, on the
Owen Sound ROad, five miles from Fergus, seven from
Arthur, and eighteen from Guelph. It contains two
churches, two hotels, two blacksmith thops, a store, shoe
shop, and 50 inhabitants.

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat•
ing 150. It was erected four or five years ago, at a cost of
$1,500. Services at 2.30 p. m. Sunday school before
service. I'rayer meeting on Thursday. There are fifty
memberK. Rev. Mr. (;hariton, of Arthur, pastor.

The Presbyterian Church is a brick building, seating 260.
It was ereoted about 15 years ago, at a cost of E2,1200.
Services at 9 p. in. Sunday schoo: at 1. There are 100
members. Rev. John Davidson, of Alma, pastor.

The post office was established about 1855. with James
Simpson as postmaster. Daily mail by stage irom Fergus
and Artha.r.

ELoaa is a flourishing incorporated village on the line
of l'ilkington, at the junction of the Grand and Irvine
rivera, and an important station of the W. G. & B. R. R.
It is also the western terminus of the Oran geville branch
of the C. V. R. Its railroad fac:ilities, together with the
admirable agricultural country with which it 1s surround-

vIrROL

ed, makes it an important grain and cattle market. It has
an exoellerlt water power, with a fall of forty feet on the
Grand River, which is utilized by a number of mills and
t'actories. The mercantile interests are well sustained, and
the substantial looking charch and school buildin gs which
ornament the village, bear ample testimon y to the value
placed upon both secular and spiritual education by its
cltlaens. A well managed local paper, the 1tllgra Eapreas,
is published here, which is liberallv patronized. Excellent
stone for building purposes abounds along the banks of the
rivers, but the quarries are not much worked. One feature
of the village is worthy of an abler pen than we can wield ;
viz., the grand natural scenery about the junction of the
streams, which is perhaps unexcelled in the Provinoe, and
which has given the place seine local celebrity. The falls
on the Grand River have a height of about forty feet,
below which both streams have excavated a deep chasm,
the rocky limestone walls on either side rising to the
height of some 70 or 80 feet, while here and there, at inter-
vals, the cliff4 are indented with caves of greater or less
lprop^-rtione. On the bank of the Irvine the bed of the
stream is reached by a succession of short stairs, and a path
along the river's side leada to a number of caves and
romsntic grottoes, where rustic seata are provided, while a
short distance down the stream in seen a substantial bri dge
spanning from cliff to cliff, but appearing to the beholder
from the great depth below, very {raglle indeed. Elora is
distant from Fergus three miles, from Guelph 18 miles,
and from Toronto 60 miles. The population is 1,558.

The Elora Agn 'Cultural Machine Co. has been establish-
ed 10 years and omploys 15 ta SJ hands in the manufacture
of mowers, reapers, threshing machines, plows, and other
agricultural implements.

The Elora Woolen Mill employs 12 hands. John Bain.
The furniture manufictory of John Mandell has been

established 81 years, and employs six hands.
The pamp and broom factory of Edward Farrow, employs

two or three hands in the manufacture of wooden pumps
and corn brooms.

The Elora Mills (9onring) have been established 80
Jears, and have six runs of stones, with a capacity of 200
ban^els a day. James Hortop. •
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The Ontario Worsted Co. was established in 1881, and
employs 75 hands in the manufacture of two-ply ingrain
carpets, and woolen and worsted yarns.

The malt house of Carter & Co. has a capacity of 50,000
bushels. It was established in 1870, and employs from 10
to 15 hands

The Dominion Brush Works have been established five
years, and employ from 10 to 12 hands, in the manufacture
of stove, floor: and shoe brushes. Robert Dalbj.

The saw mill of Wm. Turner has been established six or
seven vears, and employs 20 hands in the manufacture of
lumber, shingles, and square timber.

The Elora Tannery was established 25 or 30 years ago,
and employe 15 hands in the manufacture of all kinds of*
leather. Speciality, pebble and split. Northwood &
Rolle.

The planing mill of Joseph Stickney has been estab-
lished about eight years; manufactures sash, doors, and
blinds, and does a general building business.

The Mechanics Institute was established November 4th,
1871, and has a library of 5,500 volumes, being, next to
Toronto, the la. tgeet mechanics library in Ontario, and is
said to be the best collection in the Province The
Institute is well sustained, having a metnbershi p of 200. A
regular winter course of lectures is sustained. J. G. Beam,
Prest; Robert Mitchell, secretary and librarian.

The Elora Skating and Curling Rink Co. was incorpor-
ate4 Sept. 26th, 1879. Thoe. Biggar, Prest. ; Edward
Burns, Sec.-treas. Rink on East Mill street.

Elora Chapter, No. 49, R. A. M., was organized eight
years W. F. Savage, M. D. let Principal ; T. P.
8mith, Scribe E. Meeta Wednesday after full moon.
There are 40 members.

Irvine Lod^te, No. 208, A. F. and A. M. E. P. Smith,
W. M. ; P. Simpson, Sec. Meets Friday befo:-e fnll moon.
There are 75 members.

Elora I.udge, No. 231, 1. O. 0. F., was orpanited in
February, 1882. Robert Stewart, N. Gl.; W. H. Auger,
R. S. Meets Thursdays. There are 45 members.

Elora L. O. L, No. 846, was organized 26 veare ago.
Robert Topham, W.M.; EbEnezer Day, Sec. -Meeta the
Aret Monday In each month. There are 25 members.

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
inr 450. It was erected in 1862 at a cost of $7,000. Ser-
vices at 11 a. In. and 6.80 p.m. Sanday school at 2.80.
Prayer meeting on Thuruday. There are 100 members.
Rev. Geo. Buggin.

St. John's Church (Epis.) is a brick building, eeating
250. It was erected in 1 S75 at a cost of $3,000. Services
at 11 a.m. and 7 p.m. Sunday school beforc morning ser•
vice. Cottage meeting nn Wednesday evening. There are
75 families. Rev. Perciv4l L. Spencer, incumbent.

Knox Church ( ['re3b.) is a stone building, seating 800.
It was erected in 187: at a cost of $32,000. Services at
11 a in. and 6.80 p. in. Sunday school at 2.30. Prayer
meeting on Wednesday. There are 24u members. Rev.
S. W. Fisher.

Chalmers Church (Presh.) is a etune building. It was
erected in 1S77 at a cost of $12,000. The c5ong1'eption
was organized 27 years ago. Services at 11 it. in. and 6.30
p M. Sunday school at 2.30 p. in. Bible clam at 3.
Yra,fer meeting and Bible clais on Wednesday. Rev. Jas.
Middlemisd.

The Church of the Immaculate Conception ( R. C.) is a
brick building, seating 600. It was erected in 1870 at a
cost of $10,000. Services at 9 and 11 a.tn. Vespers at 7

C
. Sunday echool at 6 F. in. There are 50 families,
. J. J. Lee, priek.

The village was laid out in the year 1832 by Win.
Gilkison, of Rrantford, and in the fall'of the same year the
village plot was surveyed by Lewis Burwell, and in the
followinR year a bridge was constructed across the river,
which was su bsequently de3troyed by the spring floods and
another one built in 1858. Previous to 1844 little im-
provement was made. In that year Chas. Allan formed it
company and huilt a grist mill, stores, &c. The village
then steadily improved. It was named after the celebrNted
caves of Elora, in India. The first actual settler was Roi-
well Matthews, wlw, in 1818, made a clearing at the Falls.
The village was incurporated in 1858, David Foote being
the first reeve. Martin Martin kept the first hotel. The
Wesleyan Methodists erected the first church ; Knox
Church ( Presb.) being the next.
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Fttaut» is a doarisbiu8 in corporated willags on the Grasd
River, three miles sent from Elor><, and distant 13 miles
from Guelph and 61 from Toronto. The Grand 1{irer
aLr..rds an excellent water privilege for its mills and factr
ie., and beinec on the line of botb the C. V. R. and W.Ç.
â B R. R. its ahippin+l facilities am flnt-clasa It is also in
important mart for the products of the rich agrionltur ►1
country with which it is surrounded. Its business blocks
and atsxa, wbich an nu merous. are monl• built of stoos,
as are many of the dwellings, cllluohes, sobools and hctoti
ies, which give it a solid, wb.tantial appearance. Ti+e
manufacturing interaw an well su.tainewi, and the rdooa
t ional facilities ample, the soboob baina eNciently ol8oetnd
and well patrunimd. The lbturbes are mostl,r of none, of
bandsonwe e:teri..r, an ornamont to the village and a criedit
to the proaater+k. The river, which divides the village into
two parts, i..panned b^r two substantial bridges, the lied
I Wua oo each side witb a^aUe Incline. 1 to abl cos*
dnated weekl7 papar, the TAr New R*ewd. is pulli.bed
bere, whi-:h a well patrnnind. The population I. .1Knt
S.0mt.

The Monkland Woolea Mills have been established 94
and «op1071$ hands in the manufacture ad bla^tkett,

Awndsr twee3i, ^arns. dra. Jatoes Wilson.
Monk land Yilla w^r+a eatablished In 1!+bt, taad contais

four ruas of stoos for Aour aod two for oatamal. Çapaait'
-{10 barreb a da^r . Jamss Wilson.

The Fer^. Axriaultaral Works won eMablisw Is
1674. and employ 14 bands is the tsaetJaatutr of mowew
and reMwrs,_plows and otlwr agrioultanl implwtsaty
sto.nt, d<a. Beatty Brut

The maoltitais shop of T`oa. Richardson bas been estaL-
IW»d 14 7eeM and empby+ Ave or si: hands in the mat-
afaotwe of pbws. bamwa, and otbee aocultaril
=,!gamets.

FerWo. Mills bave bean establia►od about 60 rean,
and e+awtain A.e tins of .tot,es kw doer, and tau for oat
eweaL Capecity 100 baereia a day. Andnrw sieonple.

The FerFos 8e+awKy br bttaa establisbr^! 14 or 1! ►
psata, asd employ. .ytbt or twn hatadr in the 11ianufadaw
utile and patetr. Hollat.d dt Oo.

'tif 11,01. . tx•.

alrrrer Iwt'4e, No. 347, A. F. & A. M ., was urKanised

R. H. PerrY, Sec.; David B. HYrtt, litwarian. The lihrary

in 1h7fi. John Tindale, W. Y. ; Geo. A. Reid, Seo.
lluet• Thursday atter full tnoon. Tbero are 40 mernben.

Fergus Laigt►, No. 73, l. O. U. F. John Thomson,
jr., N. U.; Joseph Wood, Sec. Hoeb on Tuesday. Tben
are 70 tnemben.

Fergus Lodge, No. 63, A. O. U. W., waaurytanised three
or tour yearr aom^. John Ustaoa, Y. W.; E. Dennis.
Reourdar. Yests eacb alternate Friday. Tbere are al
tnentbees.

The Gospel Tomp-aooe Association wu orSanissd Aro
or six Ivan ago. He,► . J. B. Y allan, Preat. ; J ames Cl71e,
!lac. Ideets m..ot617. Thom are 30 a40 membenn.

Ferguw Division Providet.t Association of America, was
orSaataad in 1879. A. Taylor, Prost ; Thom. 1lamilton,
`Ape A. (Qmwr, Y. D., pbFaioiaa. Yew the third Man
tiay in each moatb. There are 60 members.

l:erytw Ya•haaier lnatitute. G. A. Reid, Prost..

contains 3,i10n vt.1ungt-s N ►'g bt sobool and t--,urM of ieo•
tarra in the w^int^•r Pt-&64,n. There am 145 memiMrw.

The Canada atethodist (:burob was erected in 1869. It
is built of bnak, with a seating capacity of 400. Services
at 11 a.tn., and 6.50 p.m. Souday aelwol at t.30. Prayer
meeting on Wednesday. There an 160 wembsr. Ho
1latthew Swanp.

Melville Cstttch (Presb.) is a stoe» building, sa+atinx 600.
It was erected in 1846. Services as 11 an, and 6.8t1 p.m.
gnedar aobool at 3. rra7er mMting on Wednesday.
There are 360 tnembets. Hew. Geo. Smellie

St. Andrew's Church (Pnsb.) is a atone building, aeatie
W. It was ereded about 1861L fisrvicvs at 11 a m. an:
+t.au p.m. sanda7 .obool et IL30. Praier meatin8 on
Wedne+day. Thom are S50 memban. Re.. James B.
V u 1lan.

lift. James Ch" (Epis.l la a atm btrildin6,aatatitW 00.
Services st 11 ami. and 7 p.m. $undy aatsbod at a.
Tbere an 50 families. Rev. James ][ortos.

8t. Jwap6's Cbtttah (k. C.,) la a oRono building, aaatin6
:Sn. It was cereted in 1O0C Services at 8 and 11 a.to.
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alternately. Sunday school at •? p.m. There are 60 fim.
ilies, Rsv. J. J. Lee, of EI ► va, 1 ► rteFt.

For^us wnu laid out in 16:13 by tiun. Adam Ferguson
and Jarnep. Wub*ter, who built an dain aid erected a saw
and Krip-t luill. Settlement cumn ►eneexl in 1S34. Tholnae
Young opened the tiret store. Hug,li Black kept the flrbt
hotel. St. Andr.-v►•'a (YreNb.) was the first church erected,
Rrv. Alex. tsardiner being the tiret Fwatur. Jameo
yel,jueen wa+ the first school teacher, and the first rret-
maeter, ►uul hah occupied the latter p,oitiun ever since.
He, with Ne,4.m. A. U. F'errier, Jaluer Perry, Chas. Allan,
.Mitchell & l^art►hure, and uthers whu o1x-raWd the Hret
saw tuill, were aulonK the first `ettlers. In th". early days
of the settlement, c:riminale were sentencx•d to extract one or
more stumps from the Main smeet, wc,rding to the enor.
mity of their erime, a penalty which was rigorously exacte(l.
The villaKe was incorporated in 1857.

For the informatiun ►►t' tho►e who entertain the idea that
every important new invention is the product of Yankee
ingenuity, it 6 worthy of record that pue ►►f the most ilu-
portant labor saving disa ►veries of the age, was the inven-
tion of an early citizen ►►f Fo us. We rufer to the reaping
machine, which was invente ry v. 1 ►ert Bell, who
was tutor to the 1'anlily of Hou. .ldarn hergt>1+on. The
model of the machine was prebented to the Farmers and
Mechanica Library of Fergus, on the return of that gentle-
man to Scotland. Itsubseqnently mysteriously disappeared
from their nooms, and found its way to the StateP, where
it is supposed to have come into the possession of Mr.
McCormick, who modeled his reaper front it. It is a fact
that the agricultural societies of Great Britain, a few years
sinoe, acknowledged their indebtedness to Mr Bell for
this useful invention, by presertir; 0::•n with £6,000
sterling.

baLicut is a post village, prettily situated on the Irvine
River, about one mile from Elora. It contains four uhoe
shopa, a foundry, coopenge, shoe peg factory, bakery, fancy
store, three hotels, two qeneral stores, two carri ehops,
two blacksmitb ahops, a harness shop, a flonring maill, tailor
abopt two breweries, a cabinet shop, a Lutheran church, and
100 inhabitanta.

The Irvine Foundry has been established 18 years, and
employs 10 hands in the manufacture of threshing ma-
chines, plows, &c. Arr.hibald Filwhie.

The shoe peg factory of James Gladstone has been
established 14 years and employe five or six hands, turning
ou, from 10 to IV bushels a day.

The carriage and agricultural iml ► lemert facto► v of
Robert Siml,w,n & Son has been established 93 yeal; and
employs four or five hands in the manufacturel of carriaôes,
wSons, plows, harr►►ws, and other agricultural implements.

The Salem Roller Flouring Mills have been established
30 vears, and turn out 110 barrels daily. .1--lin Ratz.

the Irvine Mills (roller flouring) has been established
90 eara, and turn out 150 barrels daily . J. & E. Wisaler.

The Salem Brewery llas been established 40 years and
Inanufactures 1agerbeer. Jacob Reuter.

The Irvine Brewery has been established eight or ton
years and turne out 60 barrels weekly. Conrad Doer-
becker.

The I.atheran (:hntr.h is a brick building, seating 15).
Services each alternate Sabbath at ; p. m. Sunday school
at 9 p. m. Rev. John Frosch, of Elmira, pastor.

The village was laid out by Sem Wissler and surveyed
in 1856. Wissler & Erb kept the first store and erected a
saw and grist mill, and tannery. The post-office wca
opened June let, 1863, with Som Wiesler as postmagter.

The township of Nichol was called after Col. Nichol,
who received it as a grant from Government for services in
the war of 1812•14. It subsequently passed into the hands
of Col. Thos. Clarke and others, of Nia ^ars Falls, from whom
7,000 acres, or a fourth part, was purchased by Hon. Adam
Ferguson and James Webster. Settlement commenced
about 1880 in the neighbourhood of $nrnett, the Flewell-
ing familv, from the maritime provinces, being the first
settlerb. tThey were followed by A. F. Sherratt, James
Elmslie, John Cook, John Mutrie, Henry Metcalf, Thes.
Wilson, the Sootts,Canninghatns, and others from Sootland
and England, who settled along the 7th, %:th and 9th con-
twesions, James Davidson and Patrick Scanlan on the 5th
eooression, and the Broadfoots and Dows on the 10th. In
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1884 settlement commencedalonF the river at FerFus. Most
of the settlers on the 11th, 12th and 13th concetslons came
in in 1834 and '35. The 14th, 15th and 16th began settling
in 1835. The first town meeting was held Jan. lot, 1832.
John Bryden and James Craig were elected joint assessors,
and John Mutrie, collector. James Elmalie was the first
town clerk. He was succeeded by James McQueen, the
present clerk, in Jan., 1837, who has retained the office ever
since. The first election of township officere and ()ouncil
took place in 1850, resulting in the election of Thomas
Loghrin, John Valentine, John Watt. Archibald F. bher-
ratt and Chas Allan. Mr. Allan declining to act, John
Brockie was subsequently elected in his place. John Watt
was elected first reeve, and James McQueen, clerk.

Mr. McQueen, who was postmaster, also carried the mail
once a week to Guelph, on horseback, through the woods.
Once on this trip, on cuming to a stream, he f'ound the
bridge had been swept away by a flood, and he swam the
river with his horse. The mail bag got loose and floated
down the river. His clothing froze on him. He went to
a house near by, and attaching a hoe handle to a rake
handle after wading into the stream as far as possible, he
succ®;Ied in rescuing the bag, when, after drying his
clothes, he proceeded on his journey. During the Mc-
Kenzie Rebellion Mr. McQueen would go sometimes twice
and thrice a week to Guel ph to get the news. On one
ocoasion, to avoid the Rebels, who were appropri^itinR all
the horses they could find, he returned a roundabout way
through Eramosa, which delayed him mnch beyond his
regular time. The settlers became very much alarmed at
his absence. When they heard the sound of his horn it
was very welcome news, and they all hasted out to meet him.

About 1840 a large party of poor Hi^hland fishermen
were sent out to Canada by the Duke of Argyle. They
were penniless and only one of them could speak English.
The authorities sent them from one point to another, and
):00 of them were sent by teams to Fergue by the Hamilton
people, and dumped on the street, the teamsters turning
around and driving off without making any explanations.
What to do with them was the question. They showed a
letter from the Duke commending them to the magis-
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trates of the Province. They thought this was all that was
necessary to compel the authnritier, to minister to their ne-
cessities, and were surprised when informed that the Duke
of Argyle had no more authorit' v here than the Czar of
Russia. The aettlera finally gave them homes amongst
them, and set thern to work. They knew nothing of farm-
iug, but were willing to learn. Many of them subsequently
took up land, and became prosperous farmers.

PEEL township is bounded on the north by the town-
ship of Arthur ; on the east by Garafraxa ; on the south by
Nichol and Pilkington, and portions of Waterloo and
Perth countiea ; and on the west by Maryborough. The
W. G. & B. R. R. passes through the central portion, with
stations at Alma, Goldstone and Drayton. The surface is
rolling in character, with a clay soil, two-thirds being
heavy clay, of a depth of six inches, and clay subsoil, and
about one-third a clay loam of a depth of six inches, with a
subsoil of &ravel and sand. One-fourth of the township is
reported first class land, one-half second class, and oue-
tburth third class. It is well -vatered by the Conestoga
River, and other small streams. ' The chief products of the
soil are spring wheat, barley, oats, peas, hay &e. A con-
tderable portion is devoted to pasturage, stock raising

eing largely engaged in. The area of the township is
74,0313 acres, 48,419 of which are cleWd. The timber is
principally hardwood. There are eight post offices in the
township viz : Alma, Creek Bank, Drayton, Glen Allan,
Goldstone, Macton, Parker and Winfield.

ALMA is a post village on the lines of Nichol and Pilk
iugton, on the Sa.:geen road, and is a station on the W
G. & B. R R., distant from Guelph 18 miles. It contains
a harness shop, two stvres, two shoe shops, two hotels, two
blacksmith ahops, two wagon shops, two saw mills, a
planing mill, two chopping mills, three churohes, and 225
inhabitants.

The planing and saw mill of Henry Cousins was estab-
liahed in 1881. The manufacture of latnber, sash, doors,
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blinds, and a general building business is carried on .
There is also a run of stones for chopping .

The saw mill of James I.edinzharn has been established
17 years, and employs five or six hands in the manufacture
o f lumber rmd shingles . There is also a run of stones for
chopping

Alma L . O. L. No. 531 ► , was orgRnized about 30 years
a go . Wm . H. Cousins, W . M . ; Hugh Cameron, Sec .
Meeta Thursday, on or betbre full moon . There are 30
members .

The Presbyterian Church is a brick building, seating
225. Services at 10 .30 a . In . Sundav school after service .
There are 110 members . Rev. John Davidson .

Holy Trinity Church (Epis .) is a brick building, seating
150. Services at 3 p. In . Sunday school at 2. Rev. Mr .
Spencer, of Elora, officiates.

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
ing 200. It was erected in 1875, at a co5t of $3,501 ► . Ser-
vices at 10 .30 a .m. and 6 .30 p .m. Sunday school at 9 .
Prayer meeting on Wednesday . There are 40 or 50
members . Rev. Mr. Charlton, of Arthur, officiates .

The village was laid ou t about 30 Y ears ago, by Alex .
IV1cCrae and 'fhos . Graham .

CREEK BANK is a post office on the line of Pilkington,
three miles west of Alma, wid 20 miles from Guelph.

DBAr•roN is a thriving incorporated village on the Marv-
borough line, an t a station on the W . G . & B. R . it., dis-
tant 11 miles from Palmerston, and 28 from iiuelph. The
Conestoga Itiver passes through the village, aff„rding an
excellent water privilege. The village is regulHrly laid
out, and as it is surrounded by a fine agricultural countr~% ,
and being on the line of railway, it has become an import-
ant shipp ing point for grain and cattle . A weekly paper,
the .Ara, is published here, which is well sustained . The
village contains ajewellery store, butcher shop, two cooper
shops, four grocery stores, two stove stores, a brick yard,
two tanneries, three general stores, a furniture store, a man-
ufactory of t<rtlficial limbe, three shoe stores, a bakery, two
drug ctorw, two book stores, tour hotels, two blacksmith
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shops, a hardware store, a banking house, a livery stable,
barber shop, two carriage shops, two harness shops a print-
ing office, flouring mill, saw mill, planing mill, saéh, door,
and blind factory, photograph gallery, liquor store, two
tailoring establishments, four churches, and a population
of 800 .

The planing mill of F. W. Schwendirnan has been es-
tablished sven years, and employs twenty hands in the
manufacture of sash, doors, blinds, and a general building
business .

The Drayton Roller Mill (flouring) has been established
00 years . There are six sets of rollers with a capacity of
5) barrels a (lay. R. J. Pujolas. A saw rnill in connec-
tion .

The Wellington Tannery was established in 1880 and
manufactures ~arness and sole leather . R. Cusford & Son .

The tannery of Stricker & Co. has been establisbed 1 6
vears, and manufactures a general variety of leather. Fonr
hands are employed .

The brick yard of John Clark has been established 12
years and employs four hands, turning out 3o),000 white
Ilrick annually .

Conestoga Lodge, No . 295, A . F . and A. M., was organ-
ized 10 years ago. -. Jamieson, W. M.; S. R. Dales,
Sec. Meets Tuesday on or before full moon . There are
50 or 60 rnembera .

Conrt Wellington, No. 21, I .O.F., was organized Oct .
22d, 1878. Daniel Smith, M.D., C.R . ; Henry Diebel,
recording secretary. Meets first and third Tuesdays .
There are 25 members .

Bethel Lod e, No. 753, I. O. G. T. Phineas Henry,
W. C .; W. B. ~herk, Sec. Meets Wednesdays. There are
35 members .

The Christian Church is a brick building, seating 400 .
Services at 11 a .m . and 6 .30 p .m . Sunday school at 9 .30
it. m. Prayer meeting on Tuesday. There are 100 mem-
h ers . Rev. W. S. Cowle .

The Canada Methodist Church is a fram o building, seat-
ing 450 . Services at 10 a. m. and 6.30 p rn . Sunday
dchool at 2 .30. Bible olaes on Monday . Prayer meeting
on Thursday. There are 131 members . Rev. James Mc•
Alister .
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Christ Church (Epis.) is a frame building, seating 100. 
Service at 7 p. tn. Sunday schtxd at 2 p.m. There are 
eight or ten families. Rev. Edward Westmacott, of 
Moorefield, officiates. 

St. Martin's Church (R. C.) is a brick building, seating 
150. It was erected in 1881 at a cost of $2,400. Services 
every third Sunday at 10.30 &IL Sunday school at 2.30 
p.m. There are 20  families. Rev. Mr. O'Reilly, of Acton , 
prieet. 

The village 'vas  named after Drayton, Eng., the resi-
dence of Sir Robert Peel, the  naine  being proposed b,y 
Joseph H. Hartney. at a public meeting called for the 
purpose of selecting a name for the post office in 1 851. The 
village was laid out in different surveys by J. Il. Hartney, 
Edward Dales, W. S. Handiv, and W. C..Wortley, about 
1854. These gentlemen weie the first settlers on the vil-
lage site. Rey. Ezra Adams was the first postmaster. J. 
H. Hartney built the first house, and kept the tirst store. 
Robert French kept the first hotel. Rev. Ezra Adams 
(Meth.)  vas  the first preacher located here. Geo. Douglaa 
kept the first blacksmith shop, and Morton & McLean the 
first wagon shop. Dr. Ecroyd, now of Mt. Forest, was the 
first school teacher. 

GLEN ALLAN is a pleteant village in the month-west part, 
on the Conestoga River, distant 10 miles from Elmira, In 
from Drayton, the  saine  from Goldstone station, and 2S 
miles from Guelph. A daily stage connects it with Dray-
ton. The village contains t wo hotels, a harness shop, thrCe 
blacksmith shops, two wagon shops, a stove store, tailor 
shop, two shoe shops, a saw and chopping mill, cabinet 
shop, store, two churches. and 300 inhabitants. 

hie saw mill of Benj. I'attison has been established 
four years. In connection is a chopping mill. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, Beth-
ing 200. Services at 10.30 a. m. and 6,30 p. m. Sunday 
school at 2.30 p.m. Prayer meeting on Thursday. There 
are 65 members. Rev. Benj. Sherlock. 

The Presbyterian Church is a frame bnilding. ,aating 
400. Services at 10.30 a.m. Sunday schori at noon. 
Prayer meeting on Thursday. There are 200 members. 
l ev. James Bryant. 

The village was laid out over 30 years ago by Archibald 
Kirkland, P. L S. The post office was established in 
1849, with Geo. Allan as poatinaster, who was also the first 
merchant, and erected the first saw and gtist mill. Joseph  
Rogers kept the first hotel. The Presbyterian  was  the first 
church erected, with ROW. Mr. Irvine as ',tenor. 

GoLnerroNE is a post office near the centre one and three-
quarter miles from Goldstone station on die W. G. &. B. 
R. R. distant frotn Palmerston 15 miles, and 28  frein  
G uelph. 

?heron is a post office on the line of Wellesley, three 
miles froin (den Allan. Daily mail. 

l'AttExa is a post village on the Saugeen road, two mile» 
east of Goldstone station. It contains a blackstnith shop, 
hotel, saw, stave and shingle mill, store, Methodist church, 
and 75 inhabitants. 

The saw mill of Wm. Boothe  lias  been eetablished 12 
years and employs from eight to ten hands in the manufac-
ture of lumber, staves, shingles and heading. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
ing 250. It was erected in 1869 at a cost of $1,500. Ser-
vices at 6.30 p. in. Sunday school at 10 a. m. There are 
25 tnembers. Rev. ?dr. McAlister, of Drayton, ptunor. 

WINFIELD if; a post village in the south part, seven miles 
from Alma station, and 26 from Guelph. It contains two 
stores, a blacksmith ahop, shoe shop, and 50 inhabitants. 

This township commeneed settling about 1830. Atncng 
the first settlers in the Routh part were Wm. Millis, John 
Jackson, Thos. (;hent, the brothers Sutherland, Garret 
Malloy, Geo. Allan, Thos. and John Garbutt, and Thos. 
Cosford, mostly from York county. The north part was 
settled principally by Irish Catholics In 1837 Peel con-
tained but 300 inhabitanta, which had increaeed by 1850 to 
1,966. At the present tinte the population amounts to 
4,116. 

PILKINGTON township is bounded on the north by the 
township of Peel ; on the east by Nichol on the eouth by  
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Guelph ; and on the weet by Waterloo county. The sur• 
face is inostly rolling, and the soil principally clay and 
Pawl.. loam. One-half the township is reported first-class 
fanning land. a quarter, second-clam, and the remainder 
third-class. It is well watered by the Grand River and 
other streams. The chief products of the soil are fall and 
!spring wheat, barley, oats, peas, turnips, hay, &c., and a 
considerable portion is devoted  tu  pasturam, stock raising 
being larely en d in. The tinder (*numbs of hardwood 
and cedar. TEagcsetrea of the township is 29,858 acres, . 
22,1S0 of which are cleared. The population is 1,750. 
There are three post-oftictss in the township, viz.. Inver-
hangh, Pentland and Poneonhy. 

Invitee •vott is a post-office its the south part, on theGrand 
River, four mike from Elora. 

Pitsrmarin is a Pt-office in the north-west part, near the 
Waterloo county line, five miles from Elora, and 18 frotn 
Guelph. 

PONIONST is a poet  village on the Guelph and Elora 
gravel road, four miles from-Elont, and nine from Guelph. 
It contains a store, blacksmith and wagon ehop, and 75 
inhabitants. Tri-weekly mail. 

The township originally formed a part of the township of 
Woolwich, and was known aa the " Pilkington block," 
belonging to the estate of Gen. Pilkington. It commenced 
settling in 1820, and was all eettled in 35 years. 

PUSLINCH is the  most eoutherly township of the 
county. It is bounded on the north by the township of 
Guelph on the east by Halton county ; on the south by 
Wentworth county and on the west Fiv Waterloo county. 
The surface is quite rolling, and the sod generally a standy 
loc-a, with a email proportion black loam. and an equel 
quantity gravelly. One-third is reported first-class a,gri-
cultural land, one-third second-claes and one-third third-
clam. It is well watered by numerous small streams. 
The preduct* of the soil are fall and spring wheat, barley, 
eats, rye, peas, turnipe, hay, &c., with a considerable  

amount devoted to pasturage, cattle raising being a promi-
nent industry. About one-eighth of the township is still 
timbered with beech, maple, cedar and tamarack. It is 
surrounded by rail ways, though only tme, the Credit Valley, 
psu3see through it, in the southern part. Good markets  are  
found at Guelph. Galt, litsspeler, die. The area of the 
township irè 58.243 acrets, 37,010 of which are cleared. 
The population  ils 3,2S3. Pnalinch is remarkable for two 
lakes, situated near the weatern boundary. The larger has 
an area of 64S acres, and near the center is an island a 
little over six acres in citent.  Two other islands, of more 
diminutive proportions, add 14 intiiderably to the beauty  of  
the scenery. 1 his lake Ines become quite a popular rests-  rt 
for summer pleassue parties, and a good hotel ham been 
erected for their accommodation, while a small steamer 
plies upon the waters of the lake. The smaller lake contains 
about twenty acres, and is said to be the deeper of the two 
A belt of land, about a furlong in width, separates the two 
lakes, and they have no visible communication, nor any 
source of supPly exc,pt from springs in their beds. The 
luger lake dieciiargea the surplus waters by a small stream 
into the Speed, hut the smaller has no  apparent  means of 
either supply or discharge. Puslinch contains seven post-
offices, viz.. Aberfoyle, Arkell, Corwhin, Crieff, Killeen, 
Morriston and Ptislinch. 

ABERFOTI.K iS a post village on the Brock Road, seven 
tuiles  from Guelph. A daily  stage  connectait with Guelph 
and Hamilton, and daily  mails are received. The village 
contains a coeperage, two stores, a flouring mill, two 
hotels, two blacksmith &hope, a wagon shop, saw mill, shoe 
shop, an M. E. church and 200 inhabitants. 

The Aberfoyle Mills (flouring) have been established 16 
or 18 years. There are four runs of stonee, with a capacity 
of 100.  barrels a day. R. B. Morrison. 

The saw mill of Allan McIntyre has been established 10 
years, anti manufactures lumber and lath. 

Mt. Carmel M. E. Church is a brick building, seating 150. 
It was erected in 1877. Services at 3 p.m. Sunday school 
at 2. Prater meeting on Thursday. There are 15 mem 
hers. Rev-. B. L. Cohoe, of Mountsberg, officiates; David 
Kearns, of Moffat, assistant. 
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Aberfoyle was laid out by Geo. Schatz, about 1854. 
Tile village continenecd settling about 1830. The post-
office was opened about 1850 with Samuel Falconbridge 
as postmaster. John McFarlane kept the first store. He 
named the village after bis native place in Scotland. The 
first hotel was kept by a Mr. Flynn. Ebenezer Reid taught 
the first school. George McLean carried on the tirst gnat 
mill, about twenty yearb ago. The first saw mill wu erected 
by George Schatz about 1831, who also erected a tannery 
about the  sa l ie  tune. Among the first settlers were 
Patrick Mahon, John Black, Peter McBeth and others. 

A «JILL is a post village in the north-east part, five  miles 
 from Guelph. The river Speed pukes near by, where is 

located a flouring and W001131 mill. The vili%:e contains 
&store, blackamith shop, wagon shop, Idethist church, 
and 125 inhabitants. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
ing 200. Services each alternate Sabbath at 10.30 a. in. 
Sunday school at 9. Prayer meeting on Wednesday. 

The post-office was opened 18 or 20 yean ■ ago, with 
Henry Willoughby as postmaeter. Daily mail. 

COawnix is a post-office east of the center, near the 
Halton county line. 

Centre is a post village in the south part, three miles 
from Schaw station, on the C. V. R., and ten miles from 
Guelph. Tri-weekly mail. It contains two stores, a shoe 
shop, blacksmith shop, Presbyterian church, and 50 inhab-
itanta. 

Knox Church is a brick building, seating 460. It was 
erected in 1882. Services at 11 a.m. in Gaelic, and at 1 
p. m. in English. Rev. Evan McAuley. 

Ktu.les is a post office near the south-west corner, un 
Mill Creek, one and a half miles from Leslie station, on 
the C. V. R., seven miles from Galt, and thirteen from 
Guelph. 

Ifœuturrom is a  post village on the Brock road, nine miles 
from Guelph, and one and a half from Schaw station, on 
the  C. V. B. A dail) stage connecte it with Guelph and 
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Hamilton. It contains three shoe stores, a brick yard, 
butcher shop, wagon tehop, undertaker's shop, two Glack-
stnith shops, a pump factory, three hotele, flour and teed 
store, a manufactory of roof paint, a stove store, two gen-
c.al atoret, a hantem shop, cooper situp, two churches. and 
350 inhabitants. 

The Church of the Evangelical  Association  is a brick 
building, seating 450. It was erected in 1856, and en-
larged in 1880, coating altogether $2,800. Services at 10 
a.m. and 7 p.m. Sunday school at 2. There are 95 mem-
bers. Rev. Daniel Reader. 

There is also a Catholic church, hut no services are 
held. 

The Plymouth Brethren hold tnorning and evening ser-
vices regularly, and maintain a Sunday school. 

The post  office Waà3 -opened about 1850, with R. B. 
Morrison u postmaster. Mr. litturrison kept the first store. 
Alex. Ochs kept the firm. hotel. The Evangelical Associa-
tion built the fire. church. Rev. Win. Meldrum (Preeb.) 
was the first settled preacher. Daily mail. 

Posueca is a post village in the south part, near the 
Wentworth county line, on the Guelph and 131 undas gravel 
road. It is also a station on the C. V. R. It is distant 11 
miles from Guelph, It front Galt, and 17 from Hamilton. 
The station is called " Schaws." The village contains a 
store, tailor shop, and 75 inhabitants. Daily mail. A 
daily stage conneets it with Guelph and Hamilton. 

The poet office WU establiahed in 1841, with  Win. 
 Leslie, postmaster. It was the first  post  office opened 

between Guelph and Dundas. 

WEST GARAFRAXA township, on the eut  border, is 
bounded on the north by West Luther ; on the east by 
East Garafraxa, Dufferin County ; on the south by Era-
mosa ; and on the west by Nichol and Peel. It has a 
rolling surface, with a soil principally of clay loam, with 
heavy clay subeoil, about one-fifth sandy lotun, and a small 
proportion black loam and gravelly. Three-fifths is report-
ed first class agricultural land, one-fifth second class, and 
eue-tifth third clue. It is well watered by the Grand 
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Yeestinee. lb. peet-ollies eatabliabed ia ;SU, being 
the Ibuitilblrahli diet eat evened tiasseraaa. Andrew 

. the must laumeheat. Wag the Ste pm-
anier. ilr. Llohthody upturned the irte dire. Omer 
Obese umbeled the Om ise etUl, end Job Did.= the bet 
rim mill Ths Parbytailsna ereessd the  Is 

 blest tilla 
Km le a seneeellas is the »Kb wet put 
The Ilrot Nation outeeed the blerseldp la sta. In 1441 

Ihrt end Wat Owes» «enbeesd asetaised bat rts rn 
hehkess. wiled' bad iestemed by 11110 1,861. At  ib. 

11.1.8 
tit11... Wen Callielllmta (+titia"» n a pepeliiiii 0(3,15o. 

0subsza etas« au. I )atteria ee the weed= 
d dug meaty. 

eMnimumb 

WRY LUT111.1g bead* i• 1,..uo4•et ors the south 
Mt? Cesetp ; ea the eat by Lao La 	 tt ther. Dewi 

; es the sash by Went (iambus*. sad as the 
' 	k,  Arthur. Na  Lodmor we. fin off to Dellinin 
OmetyIs  vim The revelling cheese.« 	the  wiil • 
tent leene, leità seare _parties. allay law, »d i mall 
peeped.mo  beery day,  • psedesta it tbecanseall =rat% 
gimag, brie>. —de. peas hay, Ite • sidle 
dratits‘ lob poterege. Ti.  wee 4 dte teirialsip le 1141,0/4 
me% end the periled« Labe There •19 See post 
• im la the bareptittp. via Guam,  Deteaseas, Fkertie. 
asedeseille aad airlock 

besee buoys ett -• Beira Comm" or •4  17.eatterd la." 
ie s put village ia tbe aiietberat rIrpreer. an the arty 
then! line,  slight au. .4 4 vt_ Frown, end enotaito 
tee Wale, a owe. ddigIe sud  orriu mill, • carriage *ni ' , 

allup, «'4e. two eberehem„ and 100 inhatitanto. 

• 
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I III. 	W 	TON (-omen pl itzeTOUT 

The saw and shingle mill of Warren Hathaway  bu  been 
established four years and employs six hands, turning out 
14,000 shingles and ,O®  feet of lumber daily. 

The grist mill in ounnectiun with the abov- e was °stab. 
lishett in Feb. 1889, and contains two runs  of  stone& 

Luther L O. L  No 936, was organir.ed six or 'eves 
years ago. J. T. Pwry, W. M.;  Win.  Boyd, Sec. Meetà 
Wedneoday, on or before full muon.  There are se 
members. 

The Canada Methodist Church à • frame building, seat. 
ittg 200. Services at 2 p sit. Sunday school at 1. Rev, 
Mr. Bilby. 

The Canada Presbyterian Church à • rough-east build-
ing. 300. Services at 10 am. There are 60 or 70 
mend I I  Se  et f, but no regular pastor. 

The post office was established eight or ten years age, 
withltobert W. Conn u postmaster. Tri-weekly mail. 

Ihnucts is a post rillagt'• near the center, distant nine 
miles  troua  Arthur village. It contains • saw and shingle 
mill, wagon shop. blacksmith shop, store, church, and 40 
inhabitants. 

The saw and shingle mill of Thomas Graham  é Son haa 
been established eight years and employs five hands, tem. 
ing out trom 15I to lb lumen-, of shingles, and 5,000 to 
6,000 rev of lumber daily. 

The Catania Methodist Church is a frame building, seat-
ing 150. Services each alternate Sunday at 1( a. m. 

The post-office  was opened in 1878. Semi-weekly mail 
Emma« is a post-office on the Grey county line, 11 

males east of Mt. Forest, and 41 miles  from Guelph. 
Gonnonvtits is a post village on the line of Arthur, five 

mile) from Attliut village. It contains • store, saw and 
shingle mill, blacksmith shop and 50 inhabitants. 

The saw and shingle mill of Edward Ford has been es-
tablished 19 or 14 years, and turns out 10,000 feet of lurnber 
and front 20 to 25 moues of shingle daily. 

Tbe post °thee was ?teed in IA76 with Peter Shaugh-
nessy as postmaster. Semi-weekly mail. 

Mono" is a post office north of tha center, nine miles 
from Arthur village. and 36 trom Guelph. Seani-weekly 
mail. 

L. 
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